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West Basin muniCipal Water DistriCt 
17140 s. avalon Blvd., suite 210
Carson, Ca 90746
(310) 217-2411
www.westbasin.org

December 1, 2013

to the BoarD of DireCtors anD Customers of West Basin muniCipal Water DistriCt:

West Basin municipal Water District (West Basin) staff is pleased to present the Comprehensive annual 
financial report (Cafr) for the fiscal Year 2012-2013, which ended June 30, 2013.

the Cafr is intended to provide the Board of Directors, West Basin’s customers, the public and interested 
parties with West Basin’s broad financial outlook. this report is also prepared for the purpose of meeting 
California law requiring special districts to submit an audited annual financial report to the state 
Controller within six months after the end of the fiscal year. 

this report was prepared pursuant to the guidelines set forth by the Governmental accounting standards 
Board (GasB). for the last seven years, West Basin has submitted the Cafr and received the excellence 
in financial reporting award from the Government finance officers association (Gfoa).

West Basin staff prepared this financial report in conjunction with unmodified “clean” opinion issued 
by mayer hoffman mcCann p.C. the independent auditors’ report is located at the front of the financial 
section of this report.  the management Discussion and analysis (mD&a) immediately follows the 
independent auditors report and provides a narrative introduction, overview and analysis of the basic 
financial statement.  mD&a complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction 
with it.

this report consists of West Basin management’s representations concerning the finances of West Basin. 
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the 
information presented in this report to the best of West Basin staff knowledge.
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aBout West Basin muniCipal Water DistriCt
West Basin municipal Water District (West Basin) is a special district of the state of California and an 
innovative, award-winning public agency that provides drinking and recycled water, water efficiency 
and water education programs to approximately one million residents within a 185-square mile service 
area (see service area map, p. 5).  West Basin purchases imported water from the metropolitan Water 
District of southern California (metropolitan) and sells the imported water to cities, water agencies, and 
private water companies in coastal los angeles County. 

to protect our local groundwater aquifer from seawater intrusion, West Basin’s goal is to provide 100% 
highly purified recycled water to the Water replenishment District of southern California (WrD). this 
year, West Basin expanded its capacity to reach 100% for injection into the West Coast seawater barrier. 
the seawater barrier protects and augments $200 million dollars’ worth of local groundwater supplies. 

West Basin is currently executing a Board-adopted strategic Business plan with the goal of building more 
reliability into local water supplies. through its 2008 Board-adopted Water reliability 2020 program 
(Wr 2020), West Basin is currently expanding production of locally-produced water by doubling water 
recycling and conservation programs and planning to add 10% of our future water supplies from ocean-
water desalination. in late 2010, West Basin opened its ocean-Water Desalination Demonstration facility 
and Water education Center to the public to share southern California’s water story, teach the community 
about local water supplies, and conduct scientific research on ocean-water desalination.

West Basin continues to invest in staff, operations and programs to maintain high standards within its 
workforce and reach out to the community through conservation outreach, education, community 
involvement, local business opportunities and other programs focused on providing value to the West 
Basin service area.
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BoarD of DireCtors

Carol W. Kwan 
President | division III 
 
 
 
 
 
edward C. little 
Vice President | division IV 
 
 
 
 
ronald C. (ron) smith 
treasurer | division I 
 
 
 

 
Gloria D. Gray 
division II 
 
 
 
 
Donald l. Dear 
division V

five publicly-elected officials serveas 

West Basin’s Board of Directors. voters 

in each of the five divisions from 

malibu to palos verdes and el segundo 

to Carson, elect one director to serve a 

four-year term.  the West Basin Board 

then appoints two representatives to 

serve on the 37-member metropolitan 

Board of Directors.  

 
the two representatives currently 

serving on the metropolitan Water 

District Board of Directors are Donald 

l. Dear and Gloria D. Gray.
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serviCe area

West Basin serves a diverse population of nearly one million people living and working in 17 cities and 
parts of unincorporated coastal los angeles County.  West Basin has a 3:1 resident-to-business ratio and 
an average median income of $67,000. the community income diversity ranges from approximately 
$23,000 in Westmont to approximately $200,000 in rolling hills (source: 2000 census).
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historY

as early as 1918, the levels in local groundwater basins were dropping so low that salt water from the 
ocean was seeping in and contaminating groundwater. lawns in coastal los angeles were dying from 
salty water, and well water was so salty it was often undrinkable. in the 1940s, studies showed that the 
local groundwater aquifer was being depleted at a much faster rate than it was being recharged or 
refilled. each year, the aquifer was being over drafted by millions of gallons - more water was taken out 
than was put back in. 

at that time, one solution was to supply the region with imported water through metropolitan. in 
1947, West Basin was formed by a vote of the people to serve as a wholesale agency to distribute 
water throughout its service area. in 1948, West Basin became a member agency of metropolitan, 
an agency that at that time imported water from the Colorado river, and later would also import 
water from northern California. for almost four decades, West Basin served its customer agencies and 
communities solely as a wholesaler of imported water. 
 
as a result of the extreme drought of the late 1980s and early 1990s, West Basin leaders decided to 
diversify the agency’s water portfolio to include conservation and water reuse to provide a more 
reliable supply of water for future generations. early efforts included building the world’s most unique 
water recycling facility that would convert treated wastewater into five types of high-quality recycled 
water suitable for groundwater recharge, irrigation, municipal, industrial and commercial uses.
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the benefits generated by the water recycling facility include more affordable water rates for 
customers, a reliable, locally-controlled supply of recycled water, energy use reduction from importing 
less water from hundreds of miles away, reducing wastewater and biosolids discharged to the ocean, 
and use of wastewater as a new water resource.  the drought of the early 1990s also increased 
awareness about water conservation and resulted in West Basin’s addition of conservation as a new 
water supply alternative. West Basin currently offers free indoor and outdoor programs for residents 
and businesses to reduce their consumption of water and maximize water use efficiency.  

today, West Basin is an international water industry leader, hosting visitors from around the globe.  
West Basin is focused on providing value to its customers and delivering water reliability for the region 
through a diverse supply of water that includes imported, recycled, desalted and conserved water. all 
West Basin departments contribute to the agency meeting the goals and objectives of the Board of 
Directors strategic Business plan.
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aCCountinG sYstem
as required by Generally accepted accounting principles for enterprise funds, accounts are maintained 
and financial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and accrual 
basis of accounting. accordingly, revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recorded when 
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. West Basin’s finance department is responsible 
for the overall accounting, finance and administrative functions, which include cash management, 
treasury and debt management, accumulation and processing of accounting information, financial 
reporting, information technology and contracts administration.

internal Controls
West Basin’s management is responsible for the establishment and maintenance of internal accounting 
controls that ensure assets are safeguarded and financial transactions are properly recorded and 
adequately documented. to ensure that the costs of controls do not exceed the benefits obtained, 
management uses cost estimates and judgments to attain reasonable assurance as to the adequacy of 
such controls.

BuDGet proCess anD Controls
public agencies develop budgets as both a performance tool and to demonstrate accountability to its 
stakeholders.  West Basin’s budget is developed in accordance with the priorities, goals and objectives 
established by the Board of Directors through its strategic plan and customer surveys. the strategic plan 
provides direction for planning, budgeting, implementation, evaluation and reporting. semi-annually, 
the Board of Directors reviews the strategic Business plan through a scorecard where the goals and 
objectives are measured against individual target dates, percent completion, and comments that 
support the direction taken by the Board of Directors and staff to meet these objectives.  

the budget is also used as a communication tool. interested parties, such as bond holders, credit rating 
agencies, and customers can review the budget to obtain a wide variety of information on West Basin’s 
short and long-term strategic planning, financial policies, and the current and future fiscal stability.  the 
budget shows how the agency invests its revenues derived from user fees and fixed revenue sources to 
support its mission, goals and programs.  

the General manager communicates the goals and objectives with executive staff to ensure the budget 
includes the monetary requirements necessary to achieve the goals and objectives set within the 
strategic plan.  

West Basin is not required to adopt a budget and therefore does not appropriate its fund.  however, as 
a good business practice, West Basin prepares, adopts, monitors, and reports budgeted information.

finanCial information
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CreDit ratinG anD DeBt CoveraGe
West Basin’s latest credit rating from moody’s and standards & poor’s is aa2 and aa-, respectively.  in 
order to maintain these ratings, West Basin has internally set budgeted debt coverage goals, updated 
financial policies and updated rates as appropriate.  this past year, the Board has adopted a new standby 
Charge policy and staff continues to make improvements to its award-winning investment policy.  each 
of these efforts lends to a solid management focus on fiscal policies and metrics and has assisted West 
Basin to receive strong ratings and allow West Basin to obtain low-cost financing for its capital projects. 

please refer to the statistical section for 10-year historical information on West Basin’s debt coverage.  
in fiscal Year 2005-2006, the subordinate debt coverage was not achieved due to lower-than-budgeted 
barrier sales due to poor water quality, los angeles County operational issues and also higher than 
anticipated legal expenses.  West Basin has budgeted to exceed required debt coverage on both parity 
and subordinate debt in all subsequent fiscal years.  

to maintain its financial strength, West Basin developed a long-range financial model (lrfp). the model 
uses the current fiscal year budget, incorporates multiple year revenue and expense assumptions used 
to address anticipated operating and capital expenditures, and results in a dynamic financial model for 
West Basin. the capital recycled water expenditures are based on the Capital improvement master plan 
(Cimp) and updated estimates for the ocean-Water Desalination program costs. in addition, the model 
provides the basis for certain criteria to be incorporated into financial policy development, such as debt 
management, swap and designated fund levels.  West Basin continues to monitor its assumptions to 
actual to ensure it remains a financially healthy organization.

sourCe of revenue
West Basin primarily receives its source of revenue from imported and recycled water sales. imported 
water sales and charges totaled $130 million for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013, while recycled 
water sales amounted to $33 million for the same period.  more detailed information regarding West 
Basin’s revenues is presented in the statistical section table 6: payors-potable Water sales and table 7: 
payors-recycled Water sales.

Water rates
West Basin establishes rates and charges annually through a resolution by the Board of Directors. 
starting in fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, West Basin implemented a new potable pricing structure 
that incorporates mWD’s new rates. the statistical section provides more detailed information about the 
rates under table 11: average Water rates per acre-foot (last ten fiscal Years) and table 12: imported 
Water rates.  
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respectfully,

richard nagel    margaret moggia
General Manager   Chief Financial Officer

DesiGnateD funDs
West Basin categorizes its funds into either unrestricted or restricted. unrestricted funds consist of 
designated funds that can be used for any lawful purpose at the discretion of the Board of Directors. 
the monies held within designated funds can be shifted or re-allocated at any time at the Board of 
Directors’ direction. in october 2013, the West Basin Board approved a revised Designated fund policy 
that combined certain funds, and clarified certain language. the core funds include operating liquidity 
fund, operating Contingency fund, Capital Contingency fund, and the rehabilitation & replacement 
fund. in addition, West Basin maintained its system expansion fund, rate stabilization fund and added 
a new designated fund, the standby Charges Defeasance fund, to account for the new policy.  

restricted funds consist of funds with external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, 
or by laws or regulations of government and can only be used for a designated purpose.  Currently, West 
Basin’s only restricted funds are the Bond reserve funds.

West Basin staff serviCes
West Basin currently employs 38 full-time persons, of whom 23 work in the operations, planning, 
communications and engineering departments and 15 work in accounting or administration.

aCKnoWleDGements
West Basin staff would like to thank the members of the Board of Directors for their continued support 
in the completion of this document and the implementation of projects throughout the year and 
recognize members of the finance staff who contributed to this report.
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WeSt BASIn MunIcIPAL WAter dIStrIct

orGanizational Chart
July 2013
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WeSt BASIn MunIcIPAL WAter dIStrIct

manaGement’s DisCussion anD analYsis
For the year ended June 30, 2013

the following management’s Discussion and analysis (mD&a) of activities and financial performance of the 
West Basin (or “District”) provides an introduction to the financial statement of the District for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2013. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the 
transmittal letter in the introductory section and with the basic financial statements and related notes which 
follow this section.  

finanCial hiGhliGhts
  •  the District’s net assets increased by $14 million, or 6.5% from the prior year.

 • the District’s total operating income results in $1.8 million net income when compared with the net  
      loss of $1.8 million in the prior year.

 • During the year, the District issued one refunding revenue bond (2013a) to be used for various water  
  system projects. the refunding transactions resulted in overall economic gain (difference between  
     the present values of the old and new debt service requirements) of $1.9 million.

  •  Capital contributions to the District were approximately $8.5 million for the year.

requireD finanCial statements
this annual report consists of a series of financial statements. the statement of net position, statement of 
revenues, expenses and Changes in net position and statement of Cash flows provide information about the 
activities and performance of the District using accounting methods similar to those used by private sector 
companies.

the statement of net position includes all of the District’s assets, Deferred outflows and liabilities with the 
difference between the three reported as net position.  net position is displayed in the following categories:  net 
investment in Capital assets and unrestricted net position.  this statement provides the basis for evaluating the 
capital structure of the District and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the District.

the statement of revenues, expenses and Changes in net position present information that shows the result of 
the District financial performance during the year. all of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted 
for in this statement. the statement measures the success of the District’s operations over the past year and 
determines whether the District has recovered its costs through user fees and other charges.

the statement of Cash flows provides information regarding the District’s cash receipts, cash disbursements and 
net changes in cash resulting from operating, non-capital financing, capital financing and investing activities. 
this statement addresses where cash comes from, what cash was used for, and what the change in cash balance 
during the reporting period was.

notes to the BasiC finanCial statements
the notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the 
basic financial statements as well as a description of the accounting policies used to prepare the financial 
statements. it also presents material disclosures required by generally accepted accounting principles that are 
not otherwise present in the financial statements. the notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 
28 through 49.



18 |  West Basin muniCipal Water DistriCt

finanCial analYsis of the DistriCt

1) statement of net position

Condensed statement of net position

2013 2012 Change

assets

    Current unrestricted assets  $   85,436,512  $    97,052,646  $  (11,616,134)

    Current restricted assets 6,459,771 37,288,836 (30,829,065)

    Capital asset, net 489,263,337 466,904,415 22,358,922 

    other assets 4,161,742 4,698,153 (536,411)

    total assets 585,321,362 605,944,050 (20,622,686)

Deferred outflows-interest rate swaps 3,859,295 5,448,633 (1,589,338)

liabilities

    Current liabilities 35,135,500 46,530,950 (11,395,450)

    long term liabilities 325,494,100 350,234,819 (24,740,719)

    total liabilities 360,629,600 396,765,769 (36,136,169)

net position:

    invested in capital assets, net of related debt 174,080,738 152,041,660 22,039,078 

    unrestricted 54,470,319 62,585,254 (8,114,935)

    total net position  $ 228,551,057  $   214,626,914  $    13,924,143

net position measures the District’s financial health or financial position. over time, increases or decreases in the 
District’s net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. however, one 
will need to consider other non-financial factors such as changes in economic conditions, population growth, 
new or changed government legislation, etc. the Condensed statement of net position show that assets and 
Deferred outflows of the District exceeded liabilities by $229 million and $215 million as of June 30, 2013 and 
2012, respectively. 

a large portion of the District’s net position ($174 million and $152 million as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively) reflects the District’s net investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) less any 
related debts used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. the District uses these capital assets to 
provide services to customers; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. 
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2) statement of revenues, expenses, and Changes in net position 
     Condensed statements of revenue, expenses and Changes in net position

 revenue 2013 2012 Change

   operating revenues
       Water $  129,606,873 $  114,973,744 $  14,633,129 
       Water recycling revenue 32,628,990 29,258,124 3,370,866 
       Water conservation and monitoring 1,101,047 841,457 259,590 
       Desalting revenue 879,124 1,073,749 (194,625)
   total operating revenues 164,216,034 146,147,074 18,068,960 
   non-operating revenues
       standby charges 9,805,001 9,631,773 173,228 
       investment income 2,872,452 1,323,378 1,549,074 
       realized gain on swap information 0 4,916,234 (4,916,234) 
       other non-operating revenues 194,252 563,725 (369,473)
   total non-operating revenues 12,871,705 16,435,110 (3,563,405) 

total revenue 177,087,739 162,582,184 14,505,555 

 expenses
   operating expenses
       source of supply 110,529,956 99,019,067 11,510,889 
       Water recycling costs 27,103,178 23,594,939 3,508,239 
       Depreciation and amortization 17,521,735 18,283,392 (761,657)
       Communications and monitoring 4,731,293 4,940,155 (208,862)
       Water resource planning 1,611,964 1,193,711 418,253 
       Desalting operations 891,600 900,652 (9,052)
   total operating expenses 162,389,726 147,931,916 14,457,810 
   non-operating expenses
       miscellaneous expenses 93,496 0 93,496 
       loss on disposition of assets 0 16,614 (16,614)
       interest expense 9,208,657 11,002,424 (1,793,767)
   total non-operating expenses 9,302,153 11,019,038 (1,716,885)

total expenses 171,691,879 158,950,954 12,740,925 

 net income (loss) before capital contributions 5,395,860 3,631,230  1,764,630
 Capital Contributions 8,528,283 10,560,202 (2,031,919)
 Change in net position 13,924,143 14,191,432 (267,289)
 net position – Beginning of year 214,626,914 200,435,482 14,191,432

 net position – end of year  $ 228,551,057  $   214,626,914  $    13,924,143
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3) Capital assets

at June 30, 2013, the District investment in capital assets totaled $663.3 million. Capital assets include land, 
discharge capacity rights, water facilities, potable distribution system, education center, buildings and 
improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipment and construction in progress.  this amount represents an 
increase of $39.6 million over the prior year.  the following is a summary of capital assets: 

2013 2012 Change

  land  $    25,211,646  $    25,211,646 -

  Discharge Capacity 621,189 621,189 -

  Water facilities 494,178,963 487,053,689 7,125,274

  Building and improvements 3,345,013 3,291,643 53,370

  potable Distribution system 1,241,681 1,241,681 -

  education Center 548,067 548,067         -                                      

  furniture, fixtures, and equipment 2,668,960 2,532,760 136,200

  Construction in progress 135,530,355 103,279,199 32,251,156

  total Capital assets  $  663,345,874  $  623,779,874  $  39,566,000 

a significant portion of the current year’s construction in progress is attributable to the District’s phase v 
expansion of the water recycling facility, as well as the District’s continued efforts in ocean-Water Desalination.

additional information regarding capital assets can be found in note 4 of notes to Basic financial 
statements.

2) statement of revenues, expenses, and Changes in net position 
     Condensed statements of revenue, expenses and Changes in net position (Continued) 

the statement of revenues, expenses and Changes in net position shows how the District‘s net position changed 
during the fiscal year. net position increased by $13.9 million and $14.1 million for the fiscal years ending June 
30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

a closer examination of the sources of changes in net position reveals that:

• In 2013, the District’s total operating revenues increased by $18 million, primarily due to an increase  
  in potable water sales revenues of $14.6 million and increase in recycled water revenue of $3.4 million.  
  the increase in potable water revenues is the result of both increase in water rates and sales in the year. 

• The District purchases potable water from Metropolitan and sets its rate based on the rate from  
  metropolitan. in 2013, the potable rate increased by $53 per acre foot or 7% during the fiscal year. as a  
  result, the District paid $11 million more to metropolitan to purchase the potable water. 

• The recycled water sales increase is due to the increase of water rate. The recycling water cost in 2013  
  includes the write-off of over $900,000 research and development cost. 

• The capital contributions include the fixed payments from major recycled water customers of $7.4  
  million, capital grants and cash contribution of $1.2 million. there was no contributed facilities from  
  other governmental agencies in 2013.
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4) long-term liabilities

as of June 30, 2013, the District had $344 million in long term liabilities, including certificates of participation, 
refunding revenue bonds and interest rate swaps. the District paid down $47 million from the principal 
of its long-term debts in fiscal year 2013 through refunding and cash payments. the District re-financed 
an additional $17 million in revenue bonds. note 5 in the “notes to Basic financial statements” section 
discloses the detail of all long-term debt.

the District has two outstanding swaps at the end of the fiscal year, the fair market value of these two 
swaps has been increased by $1.6 million, and however, the combined values are still recorded as $3.9 
million liabilities on statement of net position. note 9 in the “notes to Basic financial statements” discloses 
the detail of the swaps. 

the following is a summary of the long-term liabilities for the years 2013 and 2012:

2013  2012   Change

  Compensated absences $     1,100,648  $         978,605 $     122,043 

  Certificates of participation        162,096,334          210,320,660 (48,224,326)

  refunding revenue bonds        176,589,556 159,765,193 16,824,363 

  interest rate swaps             3,859,295              5,448,633 (1,589,338)

  subtotal 343,645,833  376,513,091  (32,867,258)

  less deferred amount on refunding        (12,080,176)                  (13,563,991)                  1,483,815

  total long term liabilities  $    331,565,657          $     362,949,101       $    (31,383,444)

 
ConDition affeCtinG Current finanCial position  
management is unaware of any conditions that would have a significant impact on the District’s financial 
position, net assets, or operating results in terms of past, present and future.

ContaCtinG the DistriCt’s finanCial manaGer
this financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors, and creditors with an overview 
of the District’s financial operations and overall financial condition. if you have questions about this report 
or need additional financial information, please contact margaret moggia, Cpa, Chief financial officer, at 
West Basin. 
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WeSt BASIn MunIcIPAL WAter dIStrIct

statement of net position
June 30, 2013 (With comparative totals for June 30, 2012)

assets
2013 2012

Current assets
unrestricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (note 2)  $        22,585,030  $          26,537,544 
investments (note 2) 31,136,519 40,879,984 
accounts receivable 30,963,851 28,495,902 
accrued interest receivable 157,274 415,647 
inventory 427,138 430,792 
prepaid expenses 166,700 292,777 

total unrestricted assets 85,436,512 97,052,646 

restricted assets (note 3):
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2) 4,889,798 22,724,564 
investments (note 2) 1,527,601 14,227,681 
accrued interest receivable 34,721 324,983 
Custodial cash (note 2) 7,651 11,608 

total restricted assets 6,459,771 37,288,836 

total Current assets 91,896,283 134,341,482 

nonCurrent assets
Capital assets, not depreciable (note 4)  161,363,190  129,112,034 
Capital assets, net of depreciation (note 4) 327,900,147 337,792,381 
net opeB asset (note 7) 664,947 653,350 
unamortized bond issuance costs:

2003 refunding revenue certificates of participation  -   475,867 
2008 adjustable rate refunding revenue certification of participation 253,659 271,671 
2008 refunding revenue certificates of participation 2,010,577 2,121,761 
2010 adjustable rate revenue certification of participation  -   61,717 
2011a refunding revenue bonds 304,072 331,536 
2011B refunding revenue bonds 384,753 425,412 

2012a refunding revenue bonds 348,210 356,839 
2013a refunding revenue bonds 195,524

total nonCurrent assets 493,425,079 471,602,568 

total assets  $     585,321,362  $        605,944,050 

DeferreD outfloWs
Deferred outflows -fair value of hedging derivatives (note 9)  $          3,859,295  $             5,448,633 

see accompanying notes to the financial statements
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statement of net position
June 30, 2013 (With comparative totals for June 30, 2012)

(Continued)

liaBilities

2013 2012
Current liaBilities

accounts payable and accrued expense  $     23,495,342  $     27,956,207 
accrued interest payable 5,568,601 5,860,461 
Current portion of long-term liabilities (note 5) 6,071,557 12,714,282 

total Current liaBilities 35,135,500 46,530,950 

lonG-term liaBilities (note 5)
Compensated absences 1,100,648 978,606 
interest rate swaps (note 9)  3,859,295  5,448,633 
2003 refunding revenue certificates of participation  -   43,062,570 
2008 adjustable rate refunding revenue certification of participation 30,065,000 32,090,000 
2008 refunding revenue certificates of participation 122,031,334 125,168,090 
2010 adjustable rate revenue certification of participation 10,000,000 10,000,000 
2011a refunding revenue bonds 37,502,180 38,171,700 
2011B refunding revenue bonds 64,557,727 64,882,999 
2012a refunding revenue bonds 56,334,878 56,710,494 
2013a refunding revenue bonds 18,194,771  -   

subtotal 343,645,833 376,513,092 
less:  Deferred amount on refunding (12,080,176) (13,563,991)

total 331,565,657 362,949,101 
less current portion above (6,071,557) (12,714,282)

total lonG-term liaBilities 325,494,100 350,234,819 

total liaBilities  $   360,629,600  $  396,765,769 

net position

net position:

net investment in capital assets  $   174,080,738  $  152,041,660 

unrestricted 54,470,319 62,585,254

total net position  $   228,551,057  $  214,626,914 

see accompanying notes to the financial statements
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WeSt BASIn MunIcIPAL WAter dIStrIct

statement of revenues, eXpenses anD 
ChanGes in net position
year ended June 30, 2013 (With comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2012)

2013        2012
operatinG revenues:

Water  $          129,606,873  $           114,973,744 
Water recycling revenue 32,628,990  29,258,124
Water conservation and monitoring 1,101,047  841,457
Desalting revenue 879,124  1,073,749

total operatinG revenues 164,216,034 146,147,074

operatinG eXpenses:
source of supply 110,529,956  99,019,067 
Water recycling costs 27,103,178  23,594,939 
Depreciation and amortization 17,521,735  18,283,392 
Communications and monitoring 4,731,293  4,940,155 
Water resource planning 1,611,964  1,193,711 
Desalting operations 891,600  900,652

total operatinG eXpenses 162,389,726 147,931,916

operatinG inCome (loss) 1,826,308 (1,784,842)

nonoperatinG revenues (eXpenses):
standby charges 9,805,001 9,631,773 
investment income 2,872,452 1,323,378 
realized gain on swap termination  -   4,916,234 
miscellaneous income 128,180 287,463 
non-capital grant income 66,072  276,262 
miscellaneous expense (93,496)
loss on disposition of assets  -     (16,614)   
interest expense (9,208,657) (11,002,424)

total nonoperatinG revenues (eXpenses) 3,569,552 5,416,072

net inCome Before Capital ContriButions 5,395,860 3,631,230

Capital ContriButions:
Capital grants and contribution (cash) 1,168,612  922,112
Capital-recovery charges 7,359,671  7,240,560
Contributed facilities  -    2,397,530   

total nonoperatinG revenues 8,528,283  10,560,202
ChanGe in net position 13,924,143 14,191,432

net position - BeGinninG of Year 214,626,914  200,435,482 
net position - enD of Year  $          228,551,057  $          214,626,914 

see accompanying notes to the financial statements
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WeSt BASIn MunIcIPAL WAter dIStrIct

statement of Cash floWs
year ended June 30, 2013 (With comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2012)

2013 2012
cASH FLoWS FroM oPerAtInG ActIVItIeS

Cash received from customers $  161,748,085 $  154,459,760 
Cash paid to suppliers of goods and services  (134,610,415)  (120,605,252)
Cash paid to employees for services  (4,638,579)  (4,346,809)

net Cash proviDeD BY
(useD for) operatinG aCtivities  22,499,091  29,507,699 

cASH FLoWS FroM noncAPItAL FInAncInG ActIVItIeS
Grants received  66,072  276,262 

net Cash proviDeD BY (useD for)
nonCapital finanCinG aCtivities  66,072  276,262 

cASH FLoWS FroM cAPItAL And
 reLAted FInAncInG ActIVItIeS

principal paid on long-term liabilities  (12,410,000)  (86,072,332)
Cash paid to bond escrow for refundings  (35,858,745)  (72,344,176)
acquisition and construction of capital assets  (39,566,000)  (55,251,838)
new issuance of long-term liabilities  17,697,203  217,653,762 
interest paid on long-term liabilities  (8,611,772)  (10,316,639)
Capital grants received  1,168,612  922,112 
Capital recovery charges  7,359,671  7,240,560 

net Cash proviDeD BY (useD for)
Capital anD relateD finanCinG aCtivities  (70,221,031)  1,831,449 

cASH FLoWS FroM InVeStInG ActIVItIeS
sale of investments  35,415,140  34,358,164 
purchase of investments  (12,838,679)  (39,795,398)
interest received  3,288,170  743,110 

net Cash proviDeD BY investinG aCtivities  25,864,631  (4,694,124)

net inCrease (DeCrease) in
Cash anD Cash eQuivalents  (21,791,237)  26,921,286 

Cash anD Cash equivalents, BeGinninG of Year  49,273,716  22,352,430 

Cash anD Cash equivalents, enD of Year  $  27,482,479  $  49,273,716 

(Continued)  
see notes to the financial statements
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reConCiliation of Cash anD Cash 2013 2012
eQuivalents to amounts reporteD
on the statement of net assets:

Cash and cash equivalents  $  22,585,030  $  26,537,544 
restricted cash and cash equivalents  4,889,798  22,724,564 
restricted custodial cash  7,651  11,608 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  $  27,482,479  $  49,273,716 

reConCiliation of operatinG inCome (loss) to net
  Cash proviDeD BY (useD for) operatinG aCtivities

operating income (loss) $  1,826,308 $  (1,784,842)
standby charges  9,805,001  9,631,773 
Depreciation and amortization  17,521,735  18,283,392 
nonoperating miscellaneous revenue  128,180  287,463 
nonoperating miscellaneous expenses  (93,496)  -   
Change in assets and liabilities:

(increase) decrease in accounts receivable  (2,467,949)  (1,606,549)
(increase) decrease in inventory  3,654  8,212 
(increase) decrease in prepaid expense  126,077  273,938 
(increase) decrease in net opeB asset  (11,597)  -   
(increase) decrease in custodial accounts receivable  -    -   
increase (decrease) in accounts payable  (4,460,865)  4,336,444 
increase (decrease) in compensated absences  122,043  77,868 

net Cash proviDeD BY

 (useD for) operatinG aCtivities  $  22,499,091  $  29,507,699 

nonCash investinG, Capital anD finanCinG aCtivities:

Contributed facilities  $  -  $  2,397,530 

Gain (loss) on disposition of assets  $  -  $  (16,614)

unrealized gain (loss) from investments  $  132,916  $  (493,194)

termination of swap by application of counterparty
funds pursuant to agreement  $  -    $  4,665,996 

see accompanying notes to the financial statements

WeSt BASIn MunIcIPAL WAter dIStrIct

statement of Cash floWs (continued)
year ended June 30, 2013 (With comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2012)
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 (1) summary of significant accounting policies

organization and description of the District - the West Basin municipal Water District (District) was 
incorporated on December 17, 1947, which operates under the authority of Division 20 of the California 
Water Code for the purpose of providing water and related services to the properties within the District. 
the District is governed by a five-member Board of Directors elected by the voter in the area to four-year 
term.

the mission of the District is to provide a safe and reliable supply of high quality water to the communities 
it serves. the District’s customers consist of nine agencies, private and public, within its 185-square mile 
service area. the District provides drinking and recycled water and water efficiency programs to its 
customers. 

Basis of accounting 

the District financial statements are comprised of the Comparative statements of net position, the 
Comparative statement of revenues, expenses and Changes in net position, the Comparative statement 
of Cash flows and the notes to the financial statements.

the District uses an enterprise fund to record its activities. an enterprise fund is a type of proprietary 
fund used to account for operations where the costs of providing services to the general public on a 
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user fees and charges or debt backed by 
fees and charges. 

the District uses “accrual basis of accounting”, where revenues are recorded when earned and expenses 
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regarding of the timing of related cash flows. 

the District distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with water operations.  revenues not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating 
revenues.

the District has elected to not apply the option in paragraph 7 of GasB statement no. 20, “accounting 
and financial reporting for proprietary activities” and as a consequence will continue to apply GasB 
statements and interpretations. 

the accompanying financial statements reflect the implementation of GasB statement no. 63.  
significant impacts of GasB statement no. 63 include changing the title of the statement of net assets 
to the statement of net position and reformatting the statement of net position to add separate sections 
for deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflows of resources certain balances that were previously 
reported as assets and liabilities.

estimates - the financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the united states of america and, accordingly, include amounts that are based on 
management’s best estimates and judgments.

Cash and Cash equivalents - for purposes of the statements of cash flows, the District considers all 
investment instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

WeSt BASIn MunIcIPAL WAter dIStrIct
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notes to finanCial statements

 (1) summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 

investments - investments are stated at their fair value which represents the quoted or stated market 
value. investments that are not traded on a market, such as investments in external pools, are valued 
based on the stated fair value as represented by the external pool.

inventory - inventory consists primarily of chemicals and spare parts used at the treatment plant and 
are stated at the lower of cost or market using the first-in, first-out (fifo) method.

Capital assets - Capital assets are classified into two major criteria of the business:

Capital assets used to support General administration must meet (2) conditions:

1. each individual item has a cost of $3,000 or more or a group of same type assets has a cost of 
$5,000 or more; and

2. useful life of at least three years

Capital assets used to support infrastructure and other construction projects must meet (2) conditions:

1. each individual item or component unit has a cost of $10,000 or more; and

2. useful life of at least three years 

 
all purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at historical cost. Contributed assets are reported 
at fair market value on the date received. replacements, refurbishments and other capital outlays that 
significantly extend the useful life of an asset by at least three years and the cost of the individual project 
is $10,000 or more are capitalized. other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance is expensed as 
incurred. Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method over the following estimated useful 
lives:

                                                                                                                                                               useful life

Water facilities 3 - 75 years

Buildings and improvements 3 - 40 years

furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 - 10 years

Depreciation aggregated $17,207,078 for the year ended June 30, 2013.

Construction in progress includes demonstration facilities that were constructed to test and validate 
ocean-water desalination methodologies to be used in a future completed facility.  these costs are 
considered by management to be integral and necessary to the successful completion and installation 
of a future desalination facility.

amortization - Bond issuance costs, bond discounts, bond premiums and the deferred amount on 
refunding are being amortized on the straight line method over periods not to exceed debt maturities. 
amortization expense aggregated $314,657 for the year ended June 30, 2013.

Classification of liabilities - Certain liabilities which are currently payable have been classified as 
restricted because they will be funded from restricted assets.
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 (1) summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 

Compensated absences - vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave is recorded as an expense 
and liability as benefits accrue to employees.

prior year data - selected information regarding the prior year has been included in the accompanying 
financial statements. this information has been included for comparison purposes only and does 
not represent a complete presentation in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  
accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the government’s prior year financial 
statements, from which this selected financial data was derived. the District has reclassified certain prior 
year information to conform with current year presentations.

Capital contributions - Capital contributions for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 are as follows:

Capital grants and contributions (cash)  $      1,168,612 

Capital-recovery charges                         7,359,671 

total  $      8,528,283 

Capital grants and contributions (cash) - the District receives grants from los angeles 
Department of Water and power and other agencies for several ongoing projects.

Capital-recovery charges (recycling operations) - the District receives fixed payments from 
major recycled water customers, which are intended to cover the cost of recycled water facilities 
owned by the District, that were exclusively constructed to meet their recycling needs. the fixed 
payments will continue through 2025, as the existing contracts expire.

risk management - the District is a member of the association of California Water agencies (aCWa) 
Joint powers insurance authority (“insurance authority”). the insurance authority is a risk-pooling self-
insurance authority, created under provisions of California Government Code sections 6500 et. seq.  
the purpose of the authority is to arrange and administer programs of insurance for the pooling of 
self-insured losses and to purchase excess insurance coverage.  the aCWa-insurance authority board is 
composed of representatives from a number of water districts, including West Basin. 

at June 30, 2013 the District participated in the self-insurance programs of the insurance authority as 
follows:

property loss - the insurance authority has pooled self-insurance up to $100,000 per occurrence 
and has purchased excess insurance coverage up to $100,000,000 (total insurable value of 
$242,445,367). the District has a $25,000 deductible for buildings, personal property and fixed 
equipment and a $1,000 deductible on mobile equipment.

WeSt BASIn MunIcIPAL WAter dIStrIct

notes to finanCial statements



 Comprehensive annual finanCial report  | 31

WeSt BASIn MunIcIPAL WAter dIStrIct

notes to finanCial statements

 (1) summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 

General liability - the insurance authority has pooled self-insurance up to $2,000,000 per 
occurrence and has purchased excess insurance coverage up to $58,000,000. 

auto liability - the insurance authority has pooled self-insurance up to $2,000,000 per 
occurrence and has purchased excess insurance coverage up to $58,000,000. 

public officials’ liability - the insurance authority has pooled self-insurance up to $2,000,000 
and has purchased excess insurance coverage up to $58,000,000.

fidelity bond - the insurance authority has pooled self-insurance up to $100,000.  the District 
has a $1,000 deductible.

at June 30, 2013 the District also had insurance coverage with alliant insurance for crime up to 
$3,000,000, with a $100,000 deductible.

 (2) Cash and investments

Cash and investments held by the District were comprised of the following at June 30, 2013:

  maturity in Year 
 1 Year 1 - 5 more than  
 or less Years 5 Years total 

Local agency investment fund $20,506,654     $             -                 $           -       $20,506,654
Money market mutual funds 4,908,419                    -                               -       4,908,419 
deposits with financial institutions 2,067,406                    -                               -       2,067,406 
Investments:

united states agency securities 13,902,573  10,135,490                        -       24,038,063
united states treasury securities                               -        3,253,215                        -       3,253,215
Corporate notes 952,550 2,892,691                        -       3,845,241
Guaranteed investment contracts                            -                           -          1,527,601      1,527,601 

total cash and investments $42,337,602 $16,281,396 $1,527,601 $60,146,599

Financial Statement classification:
  Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents    $22,585,030
investments      31,136,519

restricted assets: 
 Cash and cash equivalents    4,889,798
 investments    1,527,601
 Custodial cash               7,651 

total Cash and investments    $60,146,599 

the statement of cash flows has been prepared by considering the following deposits and investment 
instruments to be cash and cash equivalents:     

local agency investment fund              $20,506,654 
money market mutual funds                   4,908,419 
Deposits with financial institutions                   2,067,406 
total cash and cash equivalents              $27,482,479  
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 (2) Cash and investments (Continued)

investments authorized by the California government code and the District’s investment policy- 
the table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the District by the California 
Government Code. the table also identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code that 
address interest rate risk, and concentration of credit risk. this table does not address investments of 
debt proceeds held by bond trustees that are governed by the provisions of debt agreements of the 
District, rather than the general provision of the California Government Code or the District’s investment 
policy:

                                                                                                        
                                                                           maximum            maximum percentage      maximum investment
authorized investment type              maturity                         of portfolio             in one issuer

u.s. treasury obligations                            5 year                                none                              none
u.s. agency securities                                 5 year                                none                              none
Bankers acceptances                                  180 days                          40%                         30%
Commercial paper                                       270 days                         25%                        10%
Certificates of deposit                                5 year                               30%                            none
repurchase agreements                           1 year                                none                           none
reverse repurchase agreements            92 days                             20% of base value           none
medium-term notes                                    5 year                               30%                           none
mutual funds                                                 n/a                                   20%                        10%
money market mutual funds                   n/a                                   20%                        10%
mortgage pass-through securities         5 year                               20%                           none
laif                                                                  n/a                                    none                           none

the District’s investment policy is more restrictive than the California Government Code. the District’s 
investment policy restricts investment in prime bankers acceptances to 15% of the portfolio and no more 
than 15% of this category may be invested in any one commercial bank’s acceptances.  for Commercial 
paper, the District allows no more than 5% of the portfolio may be invested in any one issuer.

investments authorized by debt agreements – investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees 
are governed by provisions of the debt agreements, rather than the general provisions of the California 
Government Code or the District’s investment policy. the table below identifies the investment types 
that are authorized for investments held by bond trustees.  the table also identifies certain provisions of 
these debt agreements that address interest rate risk, and concentration of credit risk.
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(2) Cash and investments (Continued)

      maximum
         maximum     percentage              investment
authorized investment type        maturity   allowed                in one issuer

u.s. treasury obligations none none               none
u.s. agency securities none none               none
Bankers acceptances      180 days none               none
Commercial paper       270 days none               none
money market mutual funds                                          n/a none              none
Guaranteed investment contracts    30 year none              none

Disclosures relating to interest rate risk – interest rate risk is defined as changes in market interest rates 
will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, 
the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. in accordance with its 
investment policy, the District manages its exposure to interest rate risk by purchasing a combination 
of shorter and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of 
the portfolio is maturing over time. this provides the necessary cash flows and liquidity needed for 
operations.

information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District’s investments (including investments 
held by bond trustee) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided in the previous table that shows 
the distribution of the District’s investments by maturity as of June 30, 2013.

Disclosures relating to credit risk – Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will 
not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. in accordance with its investment policy, the 
District only purchases investments that are rated “a” or higher by a nationally recognized statistical 
rating organization. presented below is the actual rating as of the year end for each investment under 
current assets and restricted assets.

rating as of Year end
investment minimum legal rating    standard & poor’s
u.s. agency securities n/a aa+
u.s. treasury securities n/a aaa
laif n/a not rated
money market mutual funds n/a not rated
Corporate notes                                              a a and aa+
Commercial paper a-1 a-1 and a-1+
held by bond trustee:

money market mutual funds n/a a-1+ and aaa
Guaranteed investment contracts n/a not rated



34 |  West Basin muniCipal Water DistriCt

(2) Cash and investments (Continued)

Concentration of credit risk - Concentration of credit is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of 
the District’s investment in a single issue.

investments in any one issuer (other than u.s. treasury securities, mutual funds, and external investment 
pools) that represent 5% or more of total District investments are as follows:

                                      issuer                                                    investment type                         reported amount
     federal national mortgage association                 u.s. agency securities                            $  8,178,347
     federal home loan mortgage association           u.s. agency securities                              15,859,716 
                                                                                                 $24,038,063 
 
Cash and investments in the amount of $1,527,601 (including amounts held by bond trustee) are held 
in the form of a non-negotiable guaranteed investment contract issued by fsa Capital management 
services that matures on august 1, 2027.

Custodial credit risk - Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a 
depository financial institution, the District will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to 
recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. the custodial credit risk for 
investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counter-party (e.g., broker) the District will 
not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of 
another party. the California Government Code and the District’s investment policy do not contain legal 
or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, 
other than the following provision for deposits: the California Government Code requires that a 
financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities 
in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by 
the governmental unit). the market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal 
at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial 
institutions to secure District deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 
150% of the secured public deposits.

investment in state investment pool - the District is a voluntary participant in the local agency 
investment fund (laif) that is regulated by California Government Code under the oversight of the 
treasurer of the state of California.  the fair value of the District’s investment in this pool is reported in 
the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair 
value provided by lalf for the entire laif portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio).  
the balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by laif which are 
recorded on an amortized cost basis.
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(3) restricted assets

restricted assets were provided by, and are to be used for, the following at June 30, 2013:

                             funding source                                                   use   

         refunding Certificates of participation                Bond payment               $6,452,120
         and refunding revenue Bonds

         Custodial receipts                                    Custodial costs                        7,651

                                                                $6,459,771 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s  
policy to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as necessary.
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(4) Capital assets

the investment in capital assets consists of the following at June 30, 2013:

      Balance at                                                      Balance at
     July 1, 2012    additions         Deletions       June 30, 2013

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

land - recycling facilities $  23,541,078     $         -         $                    -      $   23,541,078

land – Carson  1,670,568 -       -               1,670,568 
Discharge Capacity 621,189  -       -                  621,189

Construction-in-progress     103,279,199         40,313,689         (8,062,533)        135,530,355

         total capital assets, not being
         depreciated            129,112,034         40,313,689         (8,062,533)        161,363,190

Capital assets, being depreciated:

  Building – Carson 2,343,574 -        -              2,343,574 
  Building improvement 948,069 53,370 -              1,001,439 
  potable distribution system 1,241,681        -        -              1,241,681 
  education center 548,067        -        -                 548,067 
  recycling facilities 482,149,227 7,125,274 -         489,274,501

  Groundwater desalting facility 4,904,462 -                              -              4,904,462 
  machinery and equipment 2,123,786 136,200       -              2,259,986 
  furniture and fixtures          408,974                            -                             -                 408,974

      total capital assets,
        being depreciated      494,667,840           7,314,844                             -         501,982,684  

less accumulated depreciation:

  Building – Carson (460,903) (93,743) -        (554,646)

  Building improvement (78,474) (78,490) -        (156,964)

  potable distribution system (93,126)        (62,084) -        (155,210)

  ocean desalination education center (91,345)       (60,896) -        (152,241)

  recycling facilities (153,000,563)   (16,507,489)                             -      (169,508,052)

  Groundwater desalting facility (1,822,514) (185,210)            -        (2,007,724)

  machinery and equipment (1,006,585) (187,812)       -        (1,194,397)

  furniture and fixtures           (321,949)             (31,354)                             -              (353,303)

      total accumulated depreciation   (156,875,459)     (17,207,078)                            -       (174,082,537)

      total capital assets, being
      depreciated, net   337,792,381      (9,892,234)                             -         327,900,147

      total capital assets, net $466,904,415     $30,421,455         $(8,062,533)      $489,263,337
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(5) long-term liabilities

the following amounts of long term liabilities were outstanding June 30, 2013:

          Balance at              
        July 1, 2012 additions           Deletions

          Balance at  
      June 30, 2013

             Current              
             portion  

2003a refunding revenue 
Certificates of participation $  43,062,570 $           - $(43,062,570) $                   -   $          -

2008a adjustable rate 
refunding revenue 
Certificate of participation

32,090,000 - (2,025,000) 30,065,000 2,075,000

2008B refunding revenue 
Certificate of participation 125,168,090 - (3,136,756) 122,031,334 3,335,000

2010a adjustable rate 
revenue Certificates of 
participation

10,000,000 -                - 10,000,000    -

2011a refunding revenue 
Bonds 38,171,700 - (669,520) 37,502,180 350,000

2011B refunding revenue 
Bonds 64,882,999 - (325,272) 64,557,727    -

2012a refunding revenue 
Bonds 56,710,494 -        (375,616) 56,334,878    -

2013a refunding revenue 
Bonds

                      -      18,194,771                     -  18,194,771                    - 

subtotal 370,085,853 18,194,771 (49,594,734) 338,685,890 5,760,000

Deferred amount on 
refunding (13,563,991) (299,233) 1,783,048 (12,080,176)    -

Compensated absences
978,606 422,936 (300,894) 1,100,648 311,557

interest rate swaps     5,448,633   -      (1,589,338)      3,859,295                  -        

total $362,949,101 $18,318,474   $(49,701,918) $331,565,657 $6,071,557

 2003a refunding revenue Certificates of participation - in october 2003, the financing Corporation 
issued $156,085,000 refunding revenue Certificates of participation (“2003 refunding revenue 
Certificates of participation”) to assist the District in financing and refinancing certain facilities within the 
District’s recycled water system, to fund a deposit to the reserve fund, to fund capitalized interest, and 
to pay costs of delivery of the 2003 refunding revenue Certificates. During the fiscal year the District 
refunded the 2003a refunding revenue Certificates.

 the 2003a refunding revenue Certificates have interest rates from 4.0% to 5.25% with maturities 
through august 2030.  the amount of bonds outstanding at June 30, 2013 totaled $0.
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(5) long-term liabilities (Continued)

 2008a adjustable rate refunding revenue certificates of participation - in may 2008, the financing 
Corporation issued $39,465,000 ($21,110,000 series 2008a-1 and $18,355,000 series 2008a-2) adjustable 
rate refunding revenue Certificates of participation (“2008a adjustable rate refunding revenue 
Certificates”) to assist the District in refinancing certain facilities of the District previously financed and 
refinanced from the proceeds of the 2004 and 2007 adjustable rate refunding revenue Certificates, 
to fund a reserve fund, and to pay costs of delivery of the 2008a adjustable rate refunding revenue 
Certificates.  
 
Both 2008a-1 and 2008a-2 have interest rates that are remarketed on a weekly basis (0.14% at June 30, 
2013). the amount of bonds outstanding at June 30, 2013 totaled $30,065,000.

 
2008B refunding revenue certificates of participation - in may 2008, the financing Corporation issued 
$128,665,000 refunding revenue Certificates of participation (“2008B refunding revenue Certificates”) 
to assist the District in financing and refinancing certain facilities of the District previously financed and 
refinanced from the proceeds of the 2003 adjustable rate revenue Certificates, to purchase a reserve 
fund financial guaranty insurance policy for deposit in the reserve fund, and to pay costs of delivery of 
the 2008 refunding revenue Certificates.  

 the 2008B refunding revenue Certificates have interest rates ranging from 3.0% to 5.0% with maturities 
through august 2031. this liability is presented in the accompanying statement of net position net of 
unamortized discounts and premiums as follows:

Bonds outstanding $119,920,000
unamortized premium      2,111,334
    net liability $122,031,334

 
2010a adjustable rate revenue certificates of participation - in June 2010, u.s. Bank national 
association agreed to extend up to $40,000,000 authorization credit to the District on a revolving basis 
through the purchase of West Basin municipal Water District adjustable rate revenue Certificates of 
participation, series 2010 (the “Certificate”), evidencing undivided interests in installment payments to 
be paid by the District under an installment purchase agreement dated June 1, 2010 (the “Installment 
Purchase Agreement”), by and between the District and the financing Corporation, prior to the 
commitment termination date (no later than June 14, 2016). the interest paid on the utilized portion of 
the Certificate is based on fixed rate and adjusted liBor rate of .14% at June 30, 2013. the District also 
pays facility fee on the unutilized portion of the Certificate, which is based on the fixed rate. the amount 
of certificates outstanding at June 30, 2013 totaled $10,000,000.
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(5) long-term liabilities (Continued)

 2011a refunding revenue bonds - in september 2011, the District issued $34,190,000 refunding 
revenue Bonds (“2011a refunding revenue Bonds”) to assist the District in refinancing a portion of 
certain facilities of the District previously financed and refinanced from the proceeds of the 2003a 
refunding revenue Certificates of participation, to refinance certain facilities of the District previously 
financed from the proceeds of the state of California loan, and to pay costs of delivery of the 2011a 
refunding revenue Bonds.  

 the 2011a refunding revenue Bonds have interest rates ranging from 2.5% to 5.0% with maturities 
through august 2024. this liability is presented in the accompanying statement of net position net of 
unamortized discounts and premiums as follows:

Bonds outstanding $33,850,000
unamortized premium     3,652,180
    net liability $37,502,180

 2011B refunding revenue bonds – in november 2011, the District issued $60,275,000 refunding 
revenue Bonds (“2011B refunding revenue Bonds”) to assist the District in refinancing a portion 
of certain facilities of the District previously financed and refinanced from the proceeds of the 2003 
refunding revenue Certificates of participation, to refinance certain facilities of the District previously 
financed from the proceeds of the 2010a adjustable rate revenue Certificates of participation, to fund 
capitalized interest, to fund a reserve fund and to pay costs of delivery of the 2011B refunding revenue 
Bonds.  

 the 2011B refunding revenue Bonds have interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 5.0% with maturities 
through august 2036. this liability is presented in the accompanying statement of net position net of 
unamortized discounts and premiums as follows:

Bonds outstanding $60,275,000
unamortized premium    4,282,727
    net liability $64,557,727

2012a refunding revenue bonds - in april 2012, the District issued $50,325,000 refunding revenue 
Bonds (“2012a refunding revenue Bonds”) to assist the District in refinancing a portion of certain 
facilities of the District previously financed from the proceeds of the 2003 refunding revenue Certificates 
of participation, to refinance certain facilities of the District previously financed from the proceeds of 
the 2010a adjustable rate revenue Certificates of participation, to fund capitalized interest, to fund a 
portion of a reserve fund and to pay costs of delivery of the 2012a refunding revenue Bonds.  
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(5) long-term liabilities (Continued)

 the 2012a refunding revenue Bonds have interest rates ranging from 3.0% to 5.0% with maturities 
through august 2029. this liability is presented in the accompanying statement of net position net of 
unamortized discounts and premiums as follows:

Bonds outstanding $50,325,000
unamortized premium     6,009,878
net liability $56,334,878

2013 a refunding revenue bonds - the 2013a refunding revenue Bonds were issued during the fiscal 
year to refund all of the outstanding West Basin municipal Water District refunding revenue Certificates 
of participation, series 2003a.  the difference between the remaining debt service on the defeased 
debt and the debt service on the 2013a refunding revenue bonds was $1,878,894.  the economic gain 
(difference between the present values of the old and new debt service requirements) resulting from 
the transaction was $1,913,779.

 the Bonds have interest rates ranging from 2.0% to 4.0% with maturities through august 2016. this 
liability is presented in the accompanying statement of net position net of unamortized discounts and 
premiums as follows:

Bonds outstanding $17,165,000
unamortized premium     1,029,771
    net liability $18,194,771

 
 Defeased Debt outstanding - in the current year and in prior years, the District defeased certain 

certificates of participation by placing the proceeds of certain revenue bonds in an irrevocable trust 
to provide for all future debt service payments on the old certificates of participation. accordingly, the 
trust account assets and the liabilities for the defeased debt are not included in the District’s financial 
statements. 

Debt Coverage - the District has pledged revenues, net of specified operating expenses, as security for 
debt service associated with indebtedness incurred to finance various capital facilities of the District. 
the bonds are payable solely from net revenues and are payable through fiscal year 2037. for the 
year ended June 30, 2013, debt coverage (net revenues divided by senior debt service) for senior debt 
was approximately 2.33. Debt coverage (net revenues divided by total debt service) for all debt was 
approximately 1.55.
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(5) long-term liabilities (Continued)

Debt service requirements - of the Certificates of participation (not including the 2010 adjustable rate 
revenue certificates of participation) subsequent to June 30, 2013 are as follows:

                                                              Certificates of participation                 refunding revenue Bonds 

Hedging
derivatives,

Principal Interest net Principal Interest total
           

2013/14      $5,410,000        6,739,292     1,042,558          350,000        6,870,926  20,412,776 

2014/15        5,600,000        6,596,944        974,069        9,275,000        7,306,050   29,752,063 

2015/16        5,840,000        6,434,042        899,777        9,480,000        7,096,400 29,750,219 

2016/17        6,125,000        6,082,023        824,810        5,515,000        6,720,950 25,267,783 

2017/18        6,250,000        5,904,216        742,322        6,105,000        6,500,350 25,501,888 

2018/19        6,485,000        5,709,318        661,347        6,345,000        6,256,150 25,456,815 

2019/20        6,750,000        5,373,269        575,713        6,580,000        6,012,700     25,291,682 

2020/21        7,005,000        5,186,067        487,488        6,810,000        5,794,250    25,282,805 

2021/22        7,275,000        4,853,967        393,335        7,125,000        5,493,750     25,141,052 

2022/23        7,770,000        4,552,448        298,059        7,480,000        5,137,500   25,238,007 

2023/24        8,425,000        4,180,924        245,850        7,780,000        4,776,000 25,407,774 

2024/25        8,805,000        3,776,836        201,429        8,150,000        4,387,000 25,320,265 

2025/26        9,230,000        3,355,159        154,975        8,720,000        4,010,500  25,470,634 

2026/27        9,700,000        2,916,747        107,839        8,915,000        3,574,500 25,214,086 

2027/28      10,085,000        2,442,592          57,909        9,435,000        3,149,250 25,169,751 

2028/29        9,105,000        1,957,275           8,271        9,910,000        2,677,500 23,658,046 

2029/30        9,555,000        1,506,250 -      10,410,000        2,182,000 23,653,250 

2030/31      10,035,000        1,028,500 -        4,080,000        1,661,500 16,805,000 

2031/32      10,535,000          526,750 -        4,285,000        1,457,500 16,804,250 

2032/33 - - -        4,500,000        1,243,250  5,743,250 

2033/34 - - -        4,725,000        1,018,250 5,743,250 

2034/35 - - -        4,960,000          782,000 5,742,000 

2035/36 - - -        5,210,000          534,000  5,744,000 

2036/37 - - -        5,470,000          273,500 5,743,500 
   

$149,985,000      79,122,619     7,675,751 
   

161,615,000 
     

94,915,776 
    

493,314,146 
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(6)	 Defined benefit pension plan

pers:

the District contributes to the California public employees retirement system (pers), a cost sharing 
multiple-employer public employee defined benefit pension plan. pers provides retirement, disability 
benefits, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. pers acts as a common investment and 
administrative agent for participating public entities within the state of California. pers issues a publicly 
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information 
for the cost sharing plans that are administered by pers. Copies of pers’ annual financial report may be 
obtained from its executive office at 400 “p” street, sacramento, California 95814.
 
all full-time District employees are eligible to participate in pers with benefits vesting after five years 
of service. for employees hired prior to January 1, 2013 (tier i), the maximum pers benefit is calculated 
based on the formula of 3 percent at age of 60. employees hired on or after January 1, 2013 (tier ii) who 
have not already been a member of a pension system are subject to the California public employees’ 
pension reform act of 213 (pepra), which was signed by the governor on september 12, 2012. this 
legislation establishes a new pension tier with the formula of 2 percent at age 62 with benefits calculated 
on the highest average annual compensation over a consecutive thirty-six-month period. 
 
contributions – tier i employees are required to contribute 8% of their annual covered salary to 
the cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan. the District is required to contribute at an 
actuarially determined rate. the rate for the year ended June 30, 2013 is 15.450% of annual covered 
payroll. the contribution requirements of plan members and the District are established and may 
be amended by the Board of Directors in conjunction with applicable labor contracts. the District’s 
employer contributions to the plan for the years ending June 30, 2011, 2012, and 2013 were $522,633, 
and $608,017 and $632,727.  the contributions for the year ended June 30, 2013 were based on an 
actuarial with a valuation date of June 30, 2010. 
 
tier ii employees are required to contribute 6.5% of their annual covered salary to the cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit plan. the District is required to contribute 6.7% of annual covered 
payroll.
 
under GasB 27, an employer reports an annual pension cost (apC) equal to the annual required 
contribution (arC) plus an adjustment for the cumulative difference between the apC and the 
employer’s actual plan contributions for the year.  the cumulative difference is called the net pension 
obligation (npo).  the arC for the period July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013 has been determined by an 
actuarial valuation of the plan as of June 30, 2010.  

 
Schedule of Employer Contribution

fiscal Year

annual pension     
Cost (employer  
Contribution)

percentage 
of apC 

Contributed

net 
pension 

obligation

6/30/11 $  522,633        100% $-0-
6/30/12 608,017 100% -0-
6/30/13 632,727 100% -0-

effective with the 6/30/2003 valuation, risk pools were established for plans containing less than 100 
active members as of the valuation date.  in general, plans satisfying this criteria were lumped into pools 
based on their benefit formula and membership category (safety/miscellaneous).  in total, ten risk pools, 
including the agency’s, were established for the 6/30/2003 valuation.
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6) Defined benefit pension plan (Continued)

pars:

the District has established a defined benefit, single-employer retirement plan that provides a pension 
benefit for full time Directors who retire from the District after July 1, 2002, who are at least age 50 with 5 
or more years of continuous service, and who have not been a Calpers member prior to January 1, 2003. 
the plan also provides for a supplemental retirement benefit to full time Directors who retire from the 
District after July 1, 2002, who have assumed office on or after January 1, 1995, who are at least age 55 
with 12 or more years of continuous service, and who are not eligible for another District retiree benefit. 

this plan is administered for the District through a third party administrator, pars. Copies of pars’ 
annual financial report may be obtained from its executive office at 4350 von Karman ave. suite 100, 
newport Beach, California 92660.  

the pension benefit starts at 2% of the highest average annual salary for a one year period of employment 
with the District at age 50, increases by 0.1% for each year after age of 50, capped at 3% at 60. this 
benefit is increased by a 2% annual Cost of living adjustment (Cola) after retirement. the supplemental 
benefit is a $5,000 annual benefit, which is increased by the all-urban Cpi (u.s. city average). the District 
contributes to each benefit on behalf of the eligible directors. 

the actuarial assumptions used for the report are listed in below:
asset valuation method: smoothed market value
Discount rate: 5.5%, a decrease from the 6.0% assumed previously
mortality:  post-retirement mortality rates are from the Calpers’ 

1997-2007 experience study
General inflation:               3%
aggregate payroll increase: 3.25%
termination: none assumed
salary scale: individual payroll increases are the lesser of 5% and           

inflation
retirement age:  employees will immediately retire upon the later of 

eligibility for benefits (which is usually the expiration of the 
third term on the Board), or end of the current term on the 
Board

  
the actuarial methods used are listed in below:

Cost method: entry age normal level % of pay. 

the unfunded liability amortization is calculated by using:
• The plan’s June 30, 2006 Fresh Start Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) has 
       10 years remaining as of 2012/13
• Gains and losses are amortized over 15 years (closed)
• Plan changes, assumption and method changes are amortized over 20 years (closed)
• Maximum 30 years combined amortization period
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pars:

the actuarial value assets are calculated by using: 
•  Asset gains/losses recognized over 5 years
•  Corridor: 80% & 120% of market value

the schedule below shows the results of the actuarial assumptions and methods used for the report:

                                                                                                  Schedule of Funding Progress (amounts in $000’s)

actuarial 
Covered

valuation

actuarial 
value of 
assets

actuarial 
accrued 

liabilities

unfunded 
actuarial 
accrued  

liabilities
funded  

ratio

annual 
funded 
payroll

ratio of unfunded 
liability to annual 

Covered payroll
               Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) ( c ) (b-a)/c)

6/30/08                $ 479 $ 579                   $ 100              82.7%             $ 152                       65.8%
6/30/10                   709     832          123 85.2%                156             78.8%
6/30/12    986             1,097                    111             89.9%            169 65.7%

              
the District’s funding policy is to make the contribution as determined by the plan’s actuary, expressed 
as a percentage of total Director’s payroll. the plan’s annual pension cost for the fiscal year ending June 
30, 2013 is based on an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2012. for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013, 
the District’s annual pension cost is $125,000 or 73.9% of the projected total Director payroll. the District 
contributed $111,893 to the plan.  

the required schedule of funding progress immediately following presents multi-year trend information 
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the 
actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

                                                                                                                    Schedule of Employer Contribution

fiscal Year ending
June 30

annual pension
Cost (apC)

percentage of apC
Contributed

net obligation
(asset)

2011  $     104,000      94%          $   6,362
2012         104,000    106% -
2013         125,000      90% 12,871
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(7) other post-employment benefits (opeB) 

Plan Description: West Basin municipal Water District provides post-retirement medical benefits to 
employees who retire directly from the District under Calpers under a single-employer defined benefit 
post-employment benefits plan. to be eligible for District-paid healthcare benefits, retirees must be at 
least age 55 with 10 years of District service at retirement, or meet the eligibility requirement of age 50 
and the rule of 75 (age plus Calpers service equals 75, with a minimum of 5 years District service). for 
eligible retirees, the District pays the full medical and dental premiums, plus a reimbursement for out-
of-pocket medical, dental, and vision expenses up to the active employees’ reimbursement caps. Benefit 
provisions are established and amended by the Board of Directors.

District’s Funding Policy: the District adopted GasB 45 in its fiscal year 2007/08. Based on the actuarial 
report, the District contributes annual required Contribution of the employer required contribution 
of the employer (arC) to the California employer’s retirement Benefit trust (CerBt) administered by 
Calpers. 

CerBt holds irrevocable employer contributions in a trust restricted for benefits under this program. 
separate financial statements are published by CerBt to conform to GasB statement no. 43. Copies of 
CerBt annual financial report can be obtained from its executive office at 400 “Q” street, sacramento, 
California 95811.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. the District’s annual other post-employment benefit (opeB) 
cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount 
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GasB statement no. 45. the arC represents 
a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and 
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. 
the following table shows the components of the District’s annual opeB cost for the current fiscal year, 
the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the District’s net opeB obligation for these 
benefits:

annual required contribution $   487,300
interest on net opeB obligation (49,472)
adjustment to annual required contribution 37,875

annual opeB cost (expense) 475,703
Contributions made (including retiree premiums paid) (487,300)

increase (decrease) in net opeB obligation (11,597)
net opeB obligation (asset) - beginning of year (653,350)
net opeB obligation (asset) - end of year $  (664,947)
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(7) other post-employment benefits (Continued)

this table summarizes the District’s annual opeB costs, annual opeB contribution, cash directly paid 
to retired employees, the percentage of annual opeB cost contributed to the plan, and the net opeB 
obligation from fY 2011 to fY 2013.

Year ended
annual 

opeB Cost
annual opeB 

Contributed/paid
% of annual opeB 
Contributed/paid

net opeB 
obligation (asset)

6/30/2011 $ 305,558  $ 305,558       100% $ (653,350)
6/30/2012  471,960  471,960       100% (653,350)
6/30/2013  475,703  487,300       102% (664,947)

Funding Status and Funding Progress.  as of July 1, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 49% 
funded. the table below shows the funding progress.

Schedule of Funding Progress

actuarial 
valuation 

Date

actuarial value 
of assets

(a)

actuarial 
accrued 
liability 

(aal) entry 
age
(b)

unfunded 
aal  

(uaal)
(b-a)

funded 
ratio
(a/b)

Covered 
payroll

(c)

uaal as 
a % of 

Covered 
payroll
(b-a)/c)

7/1/07   $         - $ 2,012,000 $ 2,012,000 0%  $ 2,915,179  69.02%
7/1/09 1,084,341 2,456,093 1,371,752 44% 3,285,222 41.76%
7/1/11 2,180,681 4,466,071 2,285,390 49% 3,647,096 62.66%

actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.  examples include 
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend.  amounts determined 
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are 
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates 
are made about the future.  the schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary 
information, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is 
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for the benefits.
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(7) other post-employment benefits (Continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions.  projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on 
the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the 
types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit 
costs between employer and plan members to that point.  the actuarial methods and assumptions used 
include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued 
liabilities and the actuarial assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

the actuarial cost method used for determining the benefit obligations is the entry age normal method.  
the actuarial assumptions included a 7.5% investment rate of return, which is the assumed rate of the 
expected long-term investment returns on plan assets calculated based on the funded level of the plan 
at the valuation date, and annual cost trend rate of 9.5% for medical plan premiums initially, reduced by 
decrements of 0.5% per year to an ultimate rate of 5% after the ninth year.  the plan values its assets at 
market value. all the rates included a 3.25% inflation assumption. the uaal is being amortized over 30 
years using a level-of-projected payroll basis on a closed basis.  it is assumed the District’s payroll will 
increase 3.25% per year.

(8) Commitments and contingencies 

the District has entered into various contracts for the purchase of material, construction of the utility 
plant, professional and non-professional services. Certain amounts are based on the contractor’s 
estimated cost to complete.  at June 30, 2013 the total unpaid amount on these contracts is approximately 
$16,865,000.  these commitments may be funded from restricted assets.

(9) swap transaction agreements 

in June, 2004, District entered into a swap transaction in the original notional amount of $22,875,000 for 
the purpose of hedging the variable interest rate that related to one of the District’s revenue Certificates 
of participation at the time.  this swap was executed and confirmed on June 8, 2004. in 2008, District 
refinanced this revenue Certification to 2008a-1 refunding revenue Certificates of participation and 
the swap was amended and restated as of June 6, 2008 for the original notional amount of $22,875,000. 
the agreement is scheduled to terminate august 1, 2027 unless terminated earlier. under the amended 
and restated swap transaction, the District pays a fixed rate of 3.662% and receives 65% of the British 
Bankers association - london interbank offered rate (BBa - liBor).  the fair market value of this swap 
was ($2,530,291) based on the market interest rates as of June, 30, 2013.
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(9) swap transaction agreements (Continued)

also in april, 2005, District entered into a swap transaction in the notional amount of $18,175,000 for 
the purpose of hedging the variable interest rate that related to another District’s revenue Certificates 
of participation at the time. this swap was executed on June 7, 2004.  in 2008, District refinanced 
this revenue Certification to 2008a-2 refunding revenue Certificates of participation and the swap 
was amended and restated as of may 22, 2008 for the original notional amount of $18,175,000 and is 
scheduled to terminate august 1, 2021, unless terminated earlier. under the amended and restated 
swap transaction, the District pays a fixed rate of 3.515% and receives the floating rate of 65% of BBa - 
liBor.  the fair market value of this swap was ($1,329,004) based on the market interest rates as of June, 
30, 2013.

the fair value balances and notional amounts of derivative instruments outstanding at June 30, 2013, 
classified by type, and the changes in fair value of such derivative instruments for the year then ended 
are as follows (amounts in thousands):

 
Changes in fair value fair value at June 30, 2013

classification Amount classification Amount notional

Business-type activities

Cash flow hedges:

pay-fixed interest rate 
swap Deferred outflow  $ (1,060) Debt  $ (2,530) $17,025 
pay-fixed interest rate 
swap Deferred outflow  $ (529) Debt

 
$ (1,329) $12,725 

the fair value of each of the above interest rate swap agreements has been reported as a liability in the 
accompanying statement of net position. swap agreements that have a strong correlation to the debt 
agreement of the District to which they relate and that meet the hedge accounting criteria of GasB no. 
53 have been accounted for as cash flow hedges. under hedge accounting, the changes in fair value 
associated with cash flow hedges are recorded on the statement of net assets as deferred outflows of 
financial resources (an asset). 
 
the fair values of the interest rate swaps were estimated using the zero-coupon method. this method 
calculates the future net settlement payments required by the swap, assuming that the current forward 
rates implied by the yield curve correctly anticipate future spot interest rates. these payments are then 
discounted using the spot rates implied by the current yield curve for hypothetical zero-coupon bonds 
due on the date of each future net settlement on the swaps.

WeSt BASIn MunIcIPAL WAter dIStrIct

notes to finanCial statements
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notes to finanCial statements

(9) swap transaction agreements (Continued)

objective and terms of hedging Derivative instruments

the following table displays the objective and terms of the District’s hedging derivative instruments 
outstanding at June 30, 2013, along with the credit rating of the associated counterparty (amounts in 
thousands).

type objective notional  
amount

effective  
Date

maturity 
Date terms Counterparty  

Credit rating*

pay-fixed 
interest 
rate swap

hedge of the variable 
rate interest exposure 
relating to the refunding 
revenue Certificates 
of participation series 
2008a-1.  

$17,025 5/22/08 8/01/27 pay 3.662%; 
receives 
65% of the 
BBa-liBor

a-

  
pay-fixed 
interest 
rate swap

hedge of the variable 
rate interest exposure 
relating to the refunding 
revenue Certificates 
of participation series 
2008a-2.
  

$12,725 5/22/08 8/01/21 pay 3.515%; 
receive 
floating rate 
of 65% of 
BBa-liBor

a-

* s&p rating of subordinated debt for Citibank, n.a.

Credit risk. the District is exposed to credit risk on hedging derivative instruments. to minimize its 
exposure to loss related to credit risk, it is the District’s policy to require counterparty collateral posting 
provisions in its non-exchange-traded hedging derivative instruments. these terms require full 
collateralization of the fair value of hedging derivative instruments in asset positions (net of the effect 
of applicable netting arrangements) should the counterparty, or its guarantor, not have credit ratings 
from two nationally recognized rating agencies in at least the two highest rating categories. Collateral 
posted is to be in the form of cash, u.s. treasury securities or agency securities rated “aaa” or “aaa” by 
two of the nationally recognized rating agencies held by a third-party custodian.

Interest rate risk. the District is exposed to interest rate risk on its interest rate swaps. on its pay-fixed, 
receive-variable interest rate swaps, as liBor decreases, the District’s net payment on the swap increases.  
in addition, on its basis interest rate swap, as liBor decreases or the sifma swap index increases, the 
District’s net payment on the swap increases.

Basis risk. the District is exposed to basis risk on its interest rate swaps. for its pay-fixed and receive-
variable interest rate swaps, the variable-rate payments received by the District on these hedging 
derivative instruments are based on 65 percent of one-month liBor index, reset every month, rather 
than the interest rates the District pays on its hedged variable-rate debt, which are remarketed every 7 
days. as of June 30, 2013, the interest rate on the District’s hedged variable-rate debt was 0.19 percent, 
while 65% of liBor was approximately 0.13%.

Termination risk. the District or its counterparties may terminate a derivative instrument if the other 
party fails to perform under the terms of the contract. in such event, the District may either receive or 
owe a payment to the counterparty.  the amount and the direction of the payment is dependent on 
swap interest rates and ratios and is reflects the value of the swap at the time of such termination.  as of 
June 30, 2013, the District would owe $3,859,295 if its two swaps were terminated.
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this part of the District's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context 
for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required 
supplementary information says about the District's overall financial health.

Contents page
financial trends

these schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the 
District's financial performance have changed over time.

table 1:  net position last ten fiscal Years 53
table 2:  Changes in net position last ten fiscal Years 54
table 3:  operating revenues by source last ten fiscal Years 57
table 4:  operating expenses by source last ten fiscal Years 58
table 5:  Capital Contributions by source last ten fiscal Years 60

revenue Capacity
these schedules contain information to help the reader understand the District's revenue 
sources.

table 6:  payors-potable Water sales for the Current Year and nine Years prior 61
table 7:  payors-recycled Water sales for the Current Year and nine Years prior 62
table 8:  all Water sold in acre-feet last ten fiscal Years 63
table 9:  all Water sales to Customers per acre-foot last ten fiscal Years 64
table 10:  recycled Water sales in acre-feet last ten fiscal Years 66
table 11:  average Water rates per acre-foot last ten fiscal Years 67
table 12:  imported Water rates for the Years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 68

Debt Capacity 
these schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the 
District's current levels of outstanding debt and the District's ability to issue additional debt 
in the future.

table 13:  outstanding Debt to Capital assets last ten fiscal Years 69
table 14:  annual Debt payment to expenses last ten fiscal Years 70
table 15:  standby Charge and Capital fixed payments last ten fiscal Years 71
table 16:  Debt Coverage last ten fiscal Years 72

Demographic information
these schedules offer demographic and economic information to help the reader understand 
the environment within which the District's financial activities take place.

table 17:  ten largest employers in West Basin service area 74
table 18:  population and economic statistics last ten Calendar Years 75
Demographics 76
recycled Water users for the fiscal Year ended June 30, 2013 77

operating information
these schedules contain information about the District's operations and infrastructure data 
to help the reader understand how the District's financial report relates to the services the 
District provides and the activities it performs.

General operating information fiscal Year ended June 30, 2013 78
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taBle 1: net position
Last ten Fiscal years (In Thousands)

fiscal Year net investment total
ended June 30, in Capital assets (3) unrestricted net position (3)

2004 $78,504 $86,173 $164,677 
2005  84,855  96,216 181,071 
2006  92,636  95,923 188,559 
2007  108,085  89,200 197,285 
2008  123,492  79,476 202,968 
2009  135,653  66,928 202,581 
2010  138,496  55,514 194,010  (1)
2011  142,314  58,122 200,436  (2)
2012  152,042  62,585 214,627 
2013  174,081  54,470 228,551 

(1)  fiscal Year 2010 beginning net position were restated due to the  
       deduction of $3.6 million in Construction-in-progress account and per  
       GasB no. 53 requirements, the fair value of nonhedged swap ($15.7m) at  
       the end of the fiscal Year 2009 was recorded in fiscal Year 2010.

(2)  fiscal Year 2011 beginning net position were restated in fiscal Year 2012  
       to reflect the deduction of $1.2 million in Construction-in-progress  
       account in fiscal Year 2008.

(3)   in fiscal Year 2013, West Basin adopted GasB no. 63, the name of this  
       worksheet reflects the change to net position.
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taBle 2: ChanGes in net position
Last ten Fiscal years (In Thousands)

operating revenue (loss) nonoperating revenue (loss)

fiscal Year 
ended June 30,

operating
revenues

operating
expenses

operating
revenue

(loss)
standby
Charges

investment
income

realized Gain
(swap 

termination)

Grant income
misc inc (exp)

loss on 
Disposal

(1) (2) (8) (3) (4)

2004 $94,924  $97,751  $(2,827) $9,724  $433 $ -   $(140)
2005  91,913  97,091  (5,178)  9,669  2,669  -    396 
2006  95,486  104,191  (8,705)  9,785  2,230  -    (1,588)
2007  105,289  113,094  (7,805)  9,659  4,555  -    1,081 
2008  106,072  115,260  (9,188)  9,365  3,581  -    207 
2009  107,704  119,924  (12,220)  9,701  3,093  -    243 
2010  130,623  138,786  (8,163)  9,679  1,426  -    (808)
2011  134,352  144,604  (10,252)  9,899  1,216  -    567 
2012  146,147  147,932  (1,785)  9,632  1,323  4,916  546 
2013  164,216  162,390  1,826  9,805  2,872  -    100 

(1)  further detail is shown on table 3 - "operating revenues by source" 

(2)  further detail is shown on table 4 - "operating expenses by source" 

(3)  one interest rate swap is terminated resulting in 4.9m realized gain.

(4)  in fiscal Year 2006, there is $1.5 million loss from the disposition of capital assets.

(5)  increase due to the debt refinancing in fY 2008, of its auction rate securites to  
       fixed rate debt due to the volatility in the variable rates. the interest expense  
       declined in fiscal Year 2012 and 2013 due to refinacing its 2003a refunding  
       Certificates of participation

(6)  effective fiscal Year 2010, GasB 53 states that the swap agreements that do not  
       conform to the hedge accounting criteria referred to as investment  
       derivatives. the changes in fair value associated with investment derivative are  
       reported as a gain or loss in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in  
       net assets.  West Basin terminated this type of the swap in fiscal Year 2012.

(7)  further detail is shown on table 5 - "Capital Contributions by source" with  
       explanations of the nature of these contributions.

(8)  in fiscal Year 2013, West Basin sold a $12.1m guaranteed investment contract  
       (GiC) investment for the 2003a debt serivce reserve fund and realized a gain of  
       $2.0m on this transaction.

(continued)
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taBle 2: ChanGes in net position (continued)
Last ten Fiscal years (In Thousands)

nonoperating revenue (loss)
Change in fair
value of swap
(nonhedged)

total
nonoperating

revenue (loss)

income (loss)
Before

Contributions
Capital

Contributions
Change in 

net position
fiscal Year 

ended June 30,
interest

expense
(5) (6) (7)

2004 $(7,179) $ -   $2,838 $11  $11,388  $11,399 
2005  (10,195)  -    2,539  (2,639)  19,033  16,394 
2006  (10,593)  -    (166)  (8,871)  16,359  7,488 
2007  (9,101)  -    6,194  (1,611)  10,337  8,726 
2008  (9,808)  -    3,345  (5,843)  10,332  4,489 
2009  (13,848)  -    (811)  (13,032)  9,069  (3,963)
2010  (12,498)  5,702  3,501  (4,662)  15,319  10,657 
2011  (12,038)  5,033  4,675  (5,577)  13,196  7,619 
2012  (11,002)  -    5,413  3,631  10,560  14,191 
2013  (9,209)  -    3,566  5,395  8,528  13,923 
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taBle 3:  operatinG revenues BY sourCe
Last ten Fiscal years (In Thousands)

Water sales

fiscal Year 
ended June 30,

potable, 
Barrier & CC

recycled
& lrp

Desalting
& Grp

Conservation
and monitoring total

(1) (2) (3)

2004 $78,797 $15,826 $ -    $301 $94,924 
2005  76,021  15,528  -    364  91,913 
2006  79,299  15,680  -    507  95,486 
2007  84,978  19,627  65  619  105,289 
2008  82,404  22,890  352  426  106,072 
2009  82,569  23,599  566  970  107,704 
2010  101,365  28,012  334  912  130,623 
2011  106,427  26,382  802  741  134,352 
2012  114,974  29,258  1,074  841  146,147 
2013  129,607  32,629  879  1,101  164,216 

(1)  includes  non-interruptible, seasonal storage, seawater barrier and Capacity Charge (CC).  
        in fiscal Year 2010, non-interruptible and seawater barrier water rate increased 21% over  
        the prior year. 

(2)  includes  recycled sales and incentives from metropolitan Water District of southern  
       California local resource programs (lrp) which offers $250 incentive per acre-foot of the  
       recycled water sold. explanation of the fluctuations in recycled water sales is on table 10 -  
       "recycled Water sales in acre-feet".

(3)  includes desalting water sales and incentives from metropolitan Water District of  
       southern California Groundwater recovery program (Grp) which offers $250 incentive  
       per acre-foot of the desalting water sold. this incentive ended in fiscal Year 2013.  
       explanation of the fluctuations in desalting water sales is on table 8 - "all Water Deliveries  
       in acre-feet ".
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taBle 4: operatinG eXpenses BY sourCe 
Last ten Fiscal years (In Thousands)

fiscal Year source of Water Desalting Communications
ended June 30, supply recycling Costs operations  and monitoring

(1) (2) (3) (5)

2004 $70,944 $14,193 $167 $2,095
2005 69,609 13,719 69 2,509
2006 73,089 14,899 72 2,487
2007 77,828 17,317 137 2,309
2008 75,470 20,709 440 3,123
2009 76,153 21,528 481 4,476
2010 92,276 23,477 551 4,360
2011 94,855 25,277 668 4,643
2012 99,019 23,595 901 4,940
2013 110,530 27,103 892 4,731

(1)  includes water purchases from metropolitan Water District of southern California,  
       capacity charges, and readiness-to-serve.  mWD increases are passed on to  
        West Basin customers. in fiscal Year 2010, metropolitan Water District of southern  
       California's water rate increased 21% over the prior year. 

(2)  represents West Basin's costs to operate and maintain its recycling facilities.

(3)  represents district's costs to operate and maintain its brackish desalting  facility.

(4)  increases/decreases in general and administrative (G&a) expenses were in         
       accordance with budgeted amounts.  in 2006 and 2007, the increase in general  
       and administrative expenses relate to significant legal expenses.  starting in 2008,  
       the District changed its allocation methodology and began allocating all G & a  
       costs to direct programs. 

(5)  the fluctuation in fiscal Year 2008 and fiscal Year 2013 was the result of  
       organizational restructuring. 

(continued)
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taBle 4: operatinG eXpenses BY sourCe (continued) 
Last ten Fiscal years (In Thousands)

fiscal Year General and Water resource Depreciation total operating
ended June 30, administrative planning  and amortization expenses

(4) (5)

2004 $797 $1,355 $8,200 $97,751
2005 1,113 1,732 8,340 97,091
2006 3,350 1,985 8,309 104,191
2007 1,997 3,163 10,343 113,094
2008 - 2,195 13,323 115,260
2009 - 1,096 16,190 119,924
2010 - 1,044 17,078 138,786
2011 - 893 18,268 144,604
2012 - 1,194 18,283 147,932
2013 - 1,612 17,522 162,390
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taBle 5: Capital ContriButions BY sourCe 
Last ten Fiscal years (In Thousands)

fiscal Year recycling u.s. army Corps California Department

ended June 30, operations of engineers of Water resources other total

(1) (2) (3) (4)

 2004  $7,586  $3,784 $ -    $18  $11,388 

 2005  7,625  3,538  7,860  10  19,033 

 2006  7,574  7,151  1,546  88  16,359 

 2007  7,426  1,160  -    1,751  10,337 

 2008  8,229  2,061  -    42  10,332 

 2009  7,140  1,068  409  452  9,069 

 2010  7,172  7,572  126  449  15,319 

 2011  6,887  4,628  1,239  442  13,196 

 2012  7,241  2,398  94  827  10,560 

 2013  7,360  -    -    1,168  8,528 

(1)  recycling operations - West Basin receives fixed payments from major  
       recycled water customers, which are intended  to cover the capital costs of  
       recycled water facilities that were exclusively constructed for them. the fixed  
       payments will continue to 2025, as the existing contracts expire.

(2)  u.s. army Corps of engineers - 75% of the construction costs related to the  
       harbor-south Bay Water recycling project are being paid by the u.s. army  
       Corps of engineers.  to date, the total contributions received was $33m. prior  
       period adjustments were made for fiscal Year 2008 and fiscal Year 2009 to  
       reflect the correct contribution.

(3)  California Department of Water resources (DWr) - West Basin received a grant  
       from the California Department of Water resources to assist with the design  
       and construction of the sea Water Barrier Conservation and seawater  
       desalination projects.

(4)  other - West Basin received contributions from other agencies such as los  
       angeles Department of Water & power, tesoro (formerly Bp), southern  
       California edison (sCe), metropolitan Water District of southern California  
       and etc. in fiscal Year 2007, sCe  provided a $1.7m incentive to the District for  
       the installation of solar panels. 
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taBle 6: paYors - potaBle Water sales
For the current year and nine years Prior (In Thousands)

2013 

Customer in us $ %

 California Water service (CalWater)  61,815 48.5%
 Golden state Water Company (GsWC)  (1)  17,625 13.8%
 Water replenishment District (WrD)  12,055 9.5%
 City of el segundo  10,202 8.0%
 los angeles County Water Works (la County)  9,797 7.7%
 City of inglewood  8,754 6.9%
 City of manhattan Beach  3,668 2.9%
 City of lomita  2,411 1.9%
 California american Water Company (CaWC)  1,059 0.8%

 total  $127,386 100.0%

2004 

Customer in us $ %

 California Water service (CalWater)  35,269 45.7%
 southern California Water Company (sCWC) (1)  14,194 18.4%
 Water replenishment District (WrD)  9,049 11.7%
 los angeles County Water Works (la County)  5,394 7.0%
 City of el segundo  4,512 5.9%
 City of inglewood  3,554 4.6%
 City of manhattan Beach  2,935 3.8%
 City of lomita  1,448 1.9%
 California american Water Company (CaWC)  748 1.0%

 total  $77,103 100.0%

(1)  in fiscal Year 2006 southern California Water Company changed their name to
      Golden state Water Company.

table below shows potable water sales to principal customers of West Basin
 (excluding the meter Charges, Capacity Charges and late penalties).
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taBle 7: paYors - reCYCleD Water sales 
For the current year and nine years Prior (In Thousands)

2013 

Customer in us $ %

 City of el segundo  8,051 31.1%
 California Water service (CalWater)  6,022 23.3%
 City of torrance  5,631 21.8%
 Water replenishment District (WrD)  3,741 14.5%
 l.a. Dept of Water & power  837 3.2%
 City of inglewood  649 2.5%
 Golden state Water Company (GsWC)  (1)  604 2.3%
 City of manhattan Beach  343 1.3%
 inglewood unified school District  (2)  -   0.0%

 total  $25,878 100.0%

2004 

Customer in us $ %

 City of el segundo  3,820 39.4%
 California Water service (CalWater)  1,835 18.9%
 City of torrance  1,803 18.6%
 Water replenishment District (WrD)  1,692 17.4%
 City of inglewood  181 1.9%
 southern California Water Company (sCWC)  (1)  129 1.3%
 l.a. Dept of Water & power  128 1.3%
 City of manhattan Beach  90 0.9%
 inglewood unified school District  21 0.2%

 total  $9,699 100.0%

(1)  in fiscal Year 2006 southern California Water Company changed their name to Golden  
       state Water Company.

(2)  in fiscal Year 2012 inglewood unified school District purchased recycled water directly  
       through the City of inglewood and no longer is a direct customer to West Basin.

table below shows recycled water sales to principal customers of West Basin 
(excluding lrp rebate). 
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taBle 8: all Water solD in aCre-feet 
Last ten Fiscal years (In Thousands)

this table presents a summary of  imported water purchases by the retail agencies from metropolitan Water 
District of southern California (mWD) through West Basin, desalted water delivered to California Water 
service Company Dominguez by West Basin, recycled water delivered to the retail agencies by West Basin and 
groundwater pumped by retail agencies from the West Coast Basin for the last ten fiscal years.

potable Water 
fiscal Year 

ended June 30,
non-

interruptible
Ground-

water
saltwater

Barrier
seasonal

Water
total potable

Water
all Water 

Deliveriesrecycled Desalting
(1) (2) (3) (4)  (5) 

2004  132,180  48,461  17,737  -    198,378  24,553  -    222,931 
2005  129,315  44,329  11,400  -    185,044  24,070  -    209,114 
2006  129,258  36,792  13,722  745  180,517  23,653  -    204,170 
2007  134,800  36,424  11,162  1,982  184,368  29,250  89  213,706 
2008  127,927  38,785  7,609  -    174,321  32,209  467  206,997 
2009  114,294  43,835  9,774  -    167,903  29,908  682  198,493 
2010  108,261  44,405  13,054  -    165,720  30,680  285  196,685 
2011  102,611  44,215  13,534  -    160,360  26,419  882  187,661 
2012  105,309  38,152  8,057  -    151,518  27,659  958  180,135 
2013  108,550  43,303  11,320  -    163,173  29,962  825  193,960 

(1)  Groundwater does not represent water deliveries of West Basin. this information is  
       included in the table above only for analysis. West Basin's deliveries of non- 
       interruptible, saltwater barrier, and seasonal water are affected by the amount of  
       groundwater pumped. Groundwater is purchased by the retail water agencies from  
       the Water replenishment District of southern California. 

(2)  in fiscal Year 2009, recycled water sales were lower due to poor source water issues.   
       this resulted in a corresponding increase in potable water sold to the seawater barrier.  
       in fiscal Year 2012, sales decreased due to well and pipeline repairs performed by los  
       angeles County.

(3)  seasonal Water includes (a) seasonal storage long-term; (b) seasonal shift; (c)  
       seasonal shift Contract, as applicable. in fiscal Year 2006 and 2007, mWD offered 
       more seasonal water, therefore increasing deliveries on this type of water. in  
       December 2012, mWD discontinued the seasonal storage program.

(4 ) in fiscal Year 2009, recycled water sales were lower due to poor source water issues.  
       this result in corresponding increase in potable water sold to the seawater barrier.
(5)  throughout fiscal Years 2004-2007, the Desalter underwent a number of capital  
       projects to address aging infrastructure and water quality issues.
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taBle 9: all Water sales to Customers  
                  per aCre-foot 
Last ten Fiscal years

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

 California american Water Company (CaWC)  1,451  1,384  682  2,272  1,725 
 California Water service (CalWater)  72,395  70,014  69,999  74,498  73,917 
 City of el segundo   17,074  16,360  15,767  17,062  16,950 
 City of inglewood  7,549  6,884  7,816  8,882  8,339 
 City of lomita  2,813  2,676  2,576  2,720  2,583 
 City of manhattan Beach  5,972  5,893  6,419  6,037  5,566 
 City of torrance  6,581  6,921  6,409  6,037  6,389 
 Golden state Water Company (GsWC)   28,024  29,377  29,689  28,270  22,935 
 inglewood unified school District  67  60  57  68  56 
 los angeles County Water Works (la County)  10,478  9,748  9,533  10,836  10,654 
 l.a. Dept of Water & power  394  283  257  335  360 
 Water replenishment District (WrD)  (1)  21,672  15,185  18,174  20,266  18,738 

total  (2)  174,470  164,785  167,378  177,283  168,212 

(1)  sales decreased due to replacement of the pressure reducing valves during fiscal  
       Year 2005, poor source water quality in fiscal Year 2008 and well & pipeline repairs  
       in fiscal Year 2012.

(2)  overall sales decreased from fiscal Year 2008 to 2012 due to local residents'  
       response towards conservation/water  efficiency programs to address drought  
       conditions.

(Continued)

the following table presents a summary of all water sales by West Basin to each retail agency for the last ten 
fiscal years. Water sales include desalted, non-interruptible, recycled, seasonal storage, and seawater barrier.
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taBle 9: all Water sales to Customers  
                  per aCre-foot 
Last ten Fiscal years

WeSt BASIn MunIcIPAL WAter dIStrIct

taBle 9: all Water sales to Customers  
                  per aCre-foot (continued) 
Last ten Fiscal years

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

 California american Water Company (CaWC)  1,436  809  712  902  1,019 
 California Water service (CalWater)  68,164  65,422  61,127  62,797  65,185 
 City of el segundo   17,773  19,666  16,522  17,848  17,144 
 City of inglewood  7,817  7,173  7,545  8,327  9,021 
 City of lomita  2,420  2,290  2,096  2,336  2,275 
 City of manhattan Beach  5,073  3,565  3,359  3,757  3,863 
 City of torrance  5,876  6,445  5,785  6,352  6,634 
 Golden state Water Company (GsWC)   18,280  16,634  16,352  15,399  11,637 
 inglewood unified school District  63  56  -    -    -   
 los angeles County Water Works (la County)  9,886  8,750  8,331  8,802  9,234 
 l.a. Dept of Water & power  444  619  763  876  966 
 Water replenishment District (WrD)  17,426  20,851  20,854  14,587  23,679 

 154,658  152,280  143,446  141,983  150,657 
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taBle 10: reCYCleD Water sales in aCre-feet 
Last ten Fiscal years

table below shows recycled water accounts and sales for the last ten fiscal years identified by four largest 
purchasers and others.

fiscal Year number of Chevron mobil tesoro total West Coast title 22
ended June 30, accounts refinery refinery refinery refineries Barrier irrigation total

 (2)  (1)  (1)  (1) (3)  (4) 

2004  205  7,957  6,350  3,276  17,583  3,935  3,035  24,553 
2005  207  7,563  6,708  3,183  17,454  3,799  2,817  24,070 
2006  216  7,004  6,130  3,191  16,325  4,383  2,945  23,653 
2007  221  7,661  5,742  2,951  16,354  9,104  3,792  29,250 
2008  226  7,366  6,047  4,091  17,504  11,129  3,576  32,209 
2009  326  8,478  5,578  4,759  18,815  7,652  3,441  29,908 
2010  354  8,492  6,146  4,708  19,346  7,797  3,537  30,680 
2011  378  6,163  5,538  3,973  15,674  7,320  3,425  26,419 
2012  384  6,397  6,060  5,019  17,476  6,530  3,653  27,659 
2013  402  7,146  6,348  5,208  18,702  6,622  4,638  29,962 

(1)  Chevron refinery is located in the city of el segundo, exxonmobil refinery is located  
       in torrance, and tesoro (formerly Bp amoco) is located in Carson.

(2)  in february 2009, 100 new recycled water irrigation sites were connected.

(3)  recycled Water sales include deliveries to refineries for nitrification, boiler feed,  
       reverse osmosis industrial, and reverse osmosis ultra. in fiscal Year 2011, sales to all  
       refineries were decreased due to water quality issues.

(4)  sales declined in fiscal Year 2004 through 2006 due to barrier operating issues and  
       poor source water quality. in october 2006, the District began injecting additional  
       recycled water into the West Coast Barrier (up to 75%). recycled water sales  
       decreased in fiscal Year 2009 to 2011 due to poor source water quality.
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taBle 11: averaGe Water rates per aCre-foot 
Last ten Fiscal years

type of Water 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Purchased from MWD (1) 

non-interruptible  $515  $528  $560      $541  $591 $650 $773 $898 $994 $1,063
saltwater Barrier  515  528  560       541  591  650  773 898 994 1,063
seasonal storage-lt  326  344  382   362  411  454  547 645 721 865

West Basin Recycled Water (2)

recycled- t22  $303  $303 $337  $312 $367 $438 $600 $686 $775 $840
recycled- t22 osa  343  343 354 379 409 480 642 728 817 882
recycled- Barrier  430  430  430 421 440 458 501 540 553 565
recycled- ro industrial  549  549 568 596 633 722 913 914 1003 1,068
recycled- ro ultra  725  725 750 788 837 954 1195 1270 1359 1,424
recycled- ro nitrified  283  283 292 317 347 418 577 666 755 820

West Basin Desalting Plant (3)

Desalted Water  $409  $451  $491   $472  $517 $608 $723 $746 $792 $840

(1)  purchased from mWD
       Water rates are comprised of three components:  mWD's commodity charge,  
       West Basin's reliability service charge, and the readiness-to-serve (rts) Charge. as  
       mWD changes its rates effective January 1st, the rates presented above represent  
       the average rates for the period covered.

(2)  West Basin recycled Water
       rates exclude mWD's local resources program incentive of $250 per acre-foot of  
       recycled water sold.  for t22 water sales within and outside West Basin's service  
       area, rate decreases as the volume of recycled water purchases increases. rates  
       shown above are for purchases of 0 - 25 af per month and are adopted annually.

(3)  West Basin Desalting plant
       rates exclude mWD's Groundwater recovery program incentive of $250 per acre- 
       foot of desalting water sold. 
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taBle 12: importeD Water rates 
For the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2013

tables below delineate the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012 and 2013 water rates for West Basin and 
metropolitan Water District of southern California (mWD).

West Basin
readiness-to- reliability

mWD serve Charge service Charge total

fiscal Year ended June 30, 2012
July 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011

non-interruptible & Barrier (tier 1) $744 $125 $95 $964 
non-interruptible & Barrier (tier 2) 869 125 95 1,089 
seasonal storage long-term 601  -   95 696 

January 1, 2012 to June 30, 2012

non-interruptible & Barrier (tier 1) $794 $135 $95 $1,024 
non-interruptible & Barrier (tier 2) 920 135 95 1,150 
seasonal storage long-term 651  -   95 746 

fiscal Year ended June 30, 2013
July 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012

non-interruptible & Barrier (tier 1) $794 $135 $107 $1,036 
non-interruptible & Barrier (tier 2) 920 135 107 1,162 
seasonal storage long-term  (1) 651  n/a 107 758

January 1, 2013 to June 30, 2013

non-interruptible & Barrier (tier 1) $997 $135 $107 $1,239 
non-interruptible & Barrier (tier 2) 847 135 107 1,089 
seasonal storage long-term  (1) n/a  n/a n/a n/a

(1)  the seasonal storage program was discountinued on December 31, 2012.
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taBle 12: importeD Water rates 
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taBle 13: outstanDinG DeBt to Capital assets 
Last ten Fiscal years (In Thousands)

table below provides an overview of the ratio of the total capital assets to debt outstanding as of fiscal year-
end. total long-term (lt) debt includes certificate of participations, state loan and refunding revenue bonds.

outstanDinG DeBt Capital assets

fiscal Year 
ended June 30,

Certificate of 
 participation & 
revenue Bonds

state
loan

total lt
Debt

Capitalized
 assets (1)

Construction-
in-progress (2)

total 
Capital
assets

Debt/ 
Capital
assets

2004  $339,225 $3,361  $342,586  $376,422  $12,424  $388,846 0.88 

2005  334,435  3,114  337,549  378,985  41,900  420,885 0.80 

2006  326,340  2,857  329,197  381,143  73,251  454,394 0.72 

2007  315,290  2,593  317,883  387,074  89,738  476,812 0.67 

2008  302,600  2,319  304,919  477,099  18,932  496,031 0.61 

2009  293,400  2,036  295,436  483,019  29,362  512,381 0.58 

2010  294,395  1,743  296,138  496,722  39,395  536,117 0.55 

2011  300,050  1,440  301,490  507,066  59,081  566,147 0.53 

2012 (3)  327,023  -    327,023  520,501  103,279  623,780 0.52 

2013 (3)  338,686  -    338,686  527,816  135,530  663,346 0.51 

(1)  amounts exclude accumulated depreciation;  does not include capital assets of  
       the financing authority through fiscal Year 2007. see details at "General  
       operating information".

(2)  amounts include all of the District's Construction-in-progress projects.  
       adjustments are made in fiscal Year 2008 and 2009 to reflect the decreases in  
       value of contributed projects from the u.s. army Corps of engineers.

(3)  Beginning with fiscal Year 2012, premiums with the outstanding revenue bonds  
       and certificates of participations have been included in the outstanding debt  
       columns along with the outstanding principal balances.
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taBle 14: annual DeBt paYments to eXpenses 
Last ten Fiscal years (In Thousands)

fiscal Year 
ended June 30,

principal
payments

interest
payments

total Debt
payment

operating
expenses *

ratio Debt/
expenses

2004  $9,925  $7,179  $17,104  $89,551  0.19 

2005  5,038  10,195  15,233  88,751  0.17 

2006  8,351  10,593  18,944  95,882  0.20 

2007  11,315  9,170  20,485  102,751  0.20 

2008  11,839  9,374  21,213  101,937  0.21 

2009  9,483  12,766  22,249  103,734  0.21 

2010  9,298  12,773  22,071  121,708  0.18 

2011  10,448  11,989  22,437  126,336  0.18 

2012  11,073  10,317  21,390  129,649  0.16 

2013  12,410  8,612  21,022  144,868  0.15 

* excludes depreciation and amortization.
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taBle 15: stanDBY CharGe anD Capital  
                     fiXeD paYments 
Last ten Fiscal years (In Thousands)

standby charges and Capital fixed payments are both revenues to West Basin. West Basin uses them to pay 
the debts incurred  for the constructions and improvements of its recycled water facilities. for the past ten 
years, all of West Basin's bonds were issued to finance the recycled water projects. the table below shows the 
information on these revenues as compared to debt service.

fiscal Year 
ended June 30,

standby
Charge (1)

Capital fixed 
payments (2) total Debt

payment (3)
% of Debt

service

2004  $9,724  $7,586  $17,310 $17,104 101%

2005  9,669  7,625  17,294  15,233 114%

2006  9,785  7,574  17,359  18,944 92%

2007  9,659  7,426  17,085  20,485 83%

2008  9,365  8,229  17,594  21,213 83%

2009  9,701  7,140  16,841  22,249 76%

2010  9,679  7,172  16,851  22,071 76%

2011  9,899  6,887  16,786  22,437 75%

2012  9,632  7,241  16,873  21,390 79%

2013  9,805  7,360  17,165  21,022 82%

(1)  approved annually by the Board, the standby Charge is imposed by West Basin  
       on land owners. the charge is collected by means of the property owner's tax  
       bill through the County of los angeles.  the standby Charge was designed to  
       help drought-proof the area through construction of recycled water  
       distribution an  treatment facilities.

(2)  Capital  fixed payments are paid by Bp amoco, Chevron, exxon mobil oil, and  
       los angeles Department of Water and power and are used to repay the cost  
       of the treatment and distribution facilities that were constructed for delivery  
       of recycled water to these entities. amounts are based on contractual terms.   
       these fixed revenues are reported as Capital Contributions in the basic financial  
       statements, see table 5-"Capital Contribution By source".

(3)  Beginning in fiscal Year 2006, the debt payments increased due to West Basin  
       paying both interest and principal for its subordinate bonds. in fiscal Year 2008  
       West Basin experienced higher interest rates on its variable rate debt  
       Breakdown is shown on table 14-"annual Debt service to expenses".



72 |  West Basin muniCipal Water DistriCt

WeSt BASIn MunIcIPAL WAter dIStrIct

taBle 16: DeBt CoveraGe 
Last ten Fiscal years (In Thousands, Except for Debt Coverage)

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Changes in net assets (1)  $11,399  $16,394  $7,488  $8,726  $4,489 
add:  interest expense  7,179  10,195  10,593  9,101  9,808 
add: Depreciation/amortization  8,200  8,340  8,309  10,343  13,323 
less:  non-cash items (2)  (1,898)  (3,125)  (4,671)  (2,517)  (2,827)
net revenues for Coverage  $24,880  $31,804  $21,719  $25,653  $24,793 

parity Debt service (3)  12,263  15,869  16,094  16,185  16,345 
reserve fund earnings  (1,338)  (1,868)  (1,177)  (825)  (799)
total net senior Debt service  $10,925  $14,001  $14,917  $15,360  $15,546 

Debt Coverage  2.28  2.27  1.46  1.67  1.54 

subordinate Debt service (3)  2,606  3,281  7,246  8,445  6,157 
reserve fund earnings  (19)  (5)  (1)  (2)  (12)

total net subordinate Debt service  $2,587  $3,276  $7,245  $8,443  $6,145 

 Debt Coverage (4)  5.39  5.43  0.94  1.22  1.50 

 all-in Debt Coverage  1.84  1.84  0.98  1.09  1.14 

Cash available for additional subordinate
Debt service, Capital projects and other 
purposes

 $11,368  $14,527  $(443)  $1,850  $3,102 

(1)  see table 2 -"Changes in net assets" for more detail. 

(2)  non-cash items represent grant funding from the u.s army Corps of engineer,  
       unrealized gains/losses, change in fair value of swap instruments, loss on  
       disposition of assets and nonroutine litigation settlements. 

(3)  in fY 2012, parity and subordinate debt service was reduced by capitalized  
       interest.

(4)  subordinate debt coverage in fiscal Year 2006 did not meet the required legal  
       covenant 1.15  due to a significant decrease in recycled water barrier sales as a  
       result of poor water quality and county operational issues. in addition, West  
       Basin had higher than anticipated legal costs of approximately $1.8m. 

(Continued)



 Comprehensive annual finanCial report  | 73

WeSt BASIn MunIcIPAL WAter dIStrIct

taBle 16: DeBt CoveraGe 
Last ten Fiscal years (In Thousands, Except for Debt Coverage)

WeSt BASIn MunIcIPAL WAter dIStrIct

taBle 16: DeBt CoveraGe (continued) 
Last ten Fiscal years (In Thousands, Except for Debt Coverage)

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Changes in net assets (1)  $(3,963)  $10,657  $7,619  $14,191  $13,923 
add:  interest expense  13,848  12,498  12,038  11,002 9,209
add: Depreciation/amortization  16,190  17,078  18,268  18,283 17,522
less:  non-cash items (2)     (1,446) (11,579) (9,109) (6,805) (133)
net revenues for Coverage  $24,629  28,654  28,816  36,671 40,521

parity Debt service (3)  16,595  16,078  16,517  16,115  17,790 
reserve fund earnings  (767) (762) (762) (763) (681)
total net senior Debt service  $15,828  $15,316  $15,755  $15,352  $17,109 

Debt Coverage  1.51  1.82  1.78  2.34  2.33 

subordinate Debt service (3)  6,897  7,624  7,968  8,817  9,056 
reserve fund earnings  (2)  -    -    -    -   

total net subordinate Debt service  $6,895  $7,624  $7,968  $8,817  $9,056 

 Debt Coverage (4)  1.17  1.66  1.54  2.33  2.51 

 all-in Debt Coverage  1.09  1.26  1.22  1.52  1.55 

Cash available for additional subordinate
Debt service, Capital projects and other 
purposes

 $1,906  $5,714  $5,093  $12,502  $14,356 
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taBle 17: ten larGest emploYers Within  
                      West Basin serviCe area
calendar year 2012 and Six years Prior

2012 (1) 2006 (2)

employer
number of
employees rank

number of
employees rank

northrop Grumman Corporation 12,001 1 7,675 1

raytheon Company 6,793 2 8,594 2

sony pictures entertainment 6,000 3 2,018 5

Boeing satellite systems inc. 5,247 4 5,960 3

aerospace Corporation 2,689 5 2,847 4

Directv operations inc. 2,427 6 1,268 8

palos verdes peninsula unified school District 1,970 7 1,800 6

mattel, inc. 1,738 8 1,737 7

Chevron products Company/usa inc. 1,204 9 1,062 9

G & K management Company 1,100 10  -   10

total employment Within West Basin's service area (3): not available

percentage of each employer of total employment Within West Basin service area (3): not available

(1)  most current available data.

(2)  employer information is not readily available prior to 2006.

(3)  West Basin service area includes 17 cities and part of unincorporated 
       coastal los angeles County, the total employment within our service area  
       is not available therefore West Basin can’t provide each employer’s  
       percentage of the total employment. 
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taBle 17: ten larGest emploYers Within  
                      West Basin serviCe area
calendar year 2012 and Six years Prior
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taBle 18: population anD eConomiC statistiCs
Last ten calendar years

Calendar
Year

West Basin
population 

la County
population 

personal income
(in thousands)

per Capita
personal 

income

unemployment 
rate 

(1) (2) (2) (2) (2)

2004 837,542 9,793,263  $338,203,048  $34,534 6.5%

2005 839,285 9,786,373  357,186,377  36,498 5.4%

2006 839,385 9,737,955  385,724,212  39,610 4.8%

2007 839,134 9,700,359  400,366,343  41,273 5.1%

2008 838,888 9,735,147  417,454,378  42,881 7.5%

2009 840,260 9,787,400  394,980,563  40,356 11.6%

2010 853,377 9,826,773  410,674,615  41,791 12.5%

2011 857,545 9,889,056  420,913,463  42,564 12.7%

2012 861,545  -    -    -   11.2%

2013 865,882  -    -    -   10.2%

source:

(1)  Date obtained from Water policy and resource Development Department.

(2)  Data obtained from the state of California employment Development  
       Department for los angeles County. the 2013 information is as of august.  
       Calendar year 2012 and 2013 not available.
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DemoGraphiCs

Service Area 
estimated total population served  865,882  
area 185 square miles

division I - represented by director ronald c. (ron) Smith
palos verdes estates, rancho palos verdes, rolling hills estates, rolling hills and Carson

division II - represented by director Gloria d. Gray
inglewood, south ladera heights, a portion of lennox, athens, howard and ross-sexton

division III - represented by director carol W. Kwan
hermosa Beach, lomita, manhattan Beach, redondo Beach and a portion of torrance

division IV - represented by director edward c. Little
Culver City, Del aire, el segundo, malibu, north ladera heights, topanga, view park,  
West hollywood, Windsor hills and a portion of lennox

division V - represented by director donald L. dear
Gardena, hawthorne, lawndale and el Camino village

Number of Direct Customers 11

West Basin's customers are comprised of Cities and retail Water agencies that purchase  
potable non-interruptible Water and recycled Water for further sales to the end-user or  
use in the seawater Barrier.

Annual Water Deliveries
potable Water (including groundwater) 163,998 acre-feet
recycled Water 29,962 acre-feet
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DemoGraphiCs

Service Area 
estimated total population served  865,882  
area 185 square miles

division I - represented by director ronald c. (ron) Smith
palos verdes estates, rancho palos verdes, rolling hills estates, rolling hills and Carson

division II - represented by director Gloria d. Gray
inglewood, south ladera heights, a portion of lennox, athens, howard and ross-sexton

division III - represented by director carol W. Kwan
hermosa Beach, lomita, manhattan Beach, redondo Beach and a portion of torrance

division IV - represented by director edward c. Little
Culver City, Del aire, el segundo, malibu, north ladera heights, topanga, view park,  
West hollywood, Windsor hills and a portion of lennox

division V - represented by director donald L. dear
Gardena, hawthorne, lawndale and el Camino village

Number of Direct Customers 11

West Basin's customers are comprised of Cities and retail Water agencies that purchase  
potable non-interruptible Water and recycled Water for further sales to the end-user or  
use in the seawater Barrier.

Annual Water Deliveries
potable Water (including groundwater) 163,998 acre-feet
recycled Water 29,962 acre-feet

WeSt BASIn MunIcIPAL WAter dIStrIct

reCYCleD Water users 
For the Fiscal year ended June 30, 2013

total of  
9.8 Billion Gallons

1 acre-foot = 325,900 gallons

Water usagenumber of sites

total of 402 sites

{ Cemetery use   
multi-industrial / irrigation use   
Construction use    
College use   
Draining / sump pumps use   

other uses *
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General operatinG information 
For the Fiscal year ended June 30, 2013

Number of Budgeted Full-Time Personnel 

2004 28
2005 30
2006 30
2007 33
2008 33
2009 33
2010 34
2011 36
2012 36
2013 38
prior to fY 2007, West Basin had shared staff with Central Basin municipal Water District. staff  
time was allocated each fiscal year between each entity based on the budgeted level of effort.

Certifications and Licenses Held by District Employees
professional engineer 8
engineer in training 1
Certified public accountant 3
licensed attorneys 1
masters Degree 12
state Water Certification:
         Distribution operator 3
         treatment plant operator 3

Capital Assets (In Thousands)
recycling 
Facilities desalting

Machinery &
equipment

construction-
in-Progress (3)

Admin.
Facility (2)

West Basin
capital Assets

Financing
Authority (2)

total Fixed
Assets (1)

2004  373,280  2,290  852  12,424  -    388,846  2,591  391,437 
2005  375,842  2,290  853  41,900  -    420,885  2,609  423,494 
2006  376,702  3,544  897  73,251  -    454,394  2,082  456,476 
2007  382,421  3,697  956  89,738  -    476,812  2,082  478,894 
2008  468,377  3,697  1,011  18,932  4,014  496,031  -    496,031 
2009  474,281  3,700  1,025  29,362  4,014  512,382  -    512,382 
2010  486,401  3,794  2,491  39,395  4,035  536,116  -    536,116 
2011  493,065  5,299  3,761  59,081  4,941  566,147  -    566,147 
2012  506,311  4,904  3,775  103,279  5,511  623,780  -    623,780 
2013  513,437  4,904  3,911  135,530  5,564  663,346  -    663,346 

(1)  excludes accumulated depreciation.

(2)  West Basin fully acquired ownership of its administrative facility in august  
       2008, previously a shared cost under the financing authority.

(3)  adjustments are made in fiscal Year 2008 and 2009 to reflect the decreases  
       in value of contributed projects from the u.s. army Corps of engineers.  West  
       Basin invested $513 million in recycling facilities as of June 30, 2013.   
       Cumulative recycled water produced and sold by these facilities was 438,858  
       acre-feet from inception of operations up to June 30, 2013.
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